# **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**

© 2012 Mirage Computer Systems GmbH

Version: 4.0

This document was updated: 27.11.2012

## **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**

#### by Mirage Computer Systems GmbH

This documentation and the accompanying material are for informational purpose only and property of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH, Aulendorf. Information in this document is subject to change without notice. The names of companies, products, people, characters, and/or data mentioned herein are fictitious and are in no way intended to represent any real individual, company, product, or event, unless otherwise noted.

No part of this document and the accompanying material may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, for any purpose, without the express written permission of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH.

All products and company names mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners.

Copyright © Mirage Computer Systems GmbH. All rights reserved.

3

# **Table of Contents**

Part I	Using this tutorial	8
Part II	Software Update	11
1	Update Version 3 to 4	11
	Service Pack 4.0.3	
Part III	Part I - learning the basics	17
	About Part I	17
Part IV	Introduction	19
1	Start the Application	19
	Welcome Screen	
3	Minimum Configuration Settings	22
4	Taskbar - Control Basic Functions	23
	Blue Icon - Left Mouse Click	
_	Blue Icon - Right Mouse Click	
	First Steps	
	Navigation within the Control Centre	
7	Phone Simulator	27
Part V	Make Phone Calls	30
1	Outgoing Calls	30
	Format of a Telephone Number	
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls	31
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce	31 32
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey	31 32 34
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser	
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink	
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser	31 32 34 35 36 38
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink Dial with the Clipboard	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38
2	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38
2	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 38 38
2	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 39 39
2	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial with the Browser Dial with a Hyperlink Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 39 39 40
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Clipboard Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial Necessary configuration settings for caller identification Salesforce SoftPhone Missed Calls (red icon)	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 39 39 40 40 41 42
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial within the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial Necessary configuration settings for caller identification Salesforce SoftPhone Missed Calls (red icon) Transfer a Call	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 39 39 40 40 41 41 42 43
	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial Necessary configuration settings for caller identification Salesforce SoftPhone Missed Calls (red icon) Transfer a Call	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 39 39 40 40 41 42 43 43
3	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial Necessary configuration settings for caller identification Salesforce SoftPhone Missed Calls (red icon) Transfer a Call Announced Transfer Blind Transfer	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 39 40 40 41 41 42 43 43 44
3	Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls Dial within Salesforce Dial with a Hotkey Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Browser Dial with the Clipboard Redial - using last called phone number Dial with the Telephone Set Dial with the Telephone Set Incoming Calls Video Tutorial Necessary configuration settings for caller identification Salesforce SoftPhone Missed Calls (red icon) Transfer a Call	31 32 34 35 36 38 38 38 38 38 39 40 40 41 41 42 43 43 44

4	(	CTI Data Connector 4.0	
Part V	/1	Configuration Wizard	51
	1	Introduction	51
	2	Select Language	52
	3	TAPI device driver , Hotkey, Expert Settings, Browser Dialling	
	-	TAPI Driver	
		Configure Hotkeys	-
		Configure dial options for Browser	
	4	Expert Settings	58
		TAPI Configuration	
		Help and Welcome Development API	
		Miscellaneous Settings	
	5	Configuration of the PBX and Caller Identification	
		PBX Configuration	
		Dialing Rules	
		Dialing Rules for US / Canada	
		Configuration Caller Identification	
Part V		Service Programmes	77
	1	Show License Information	77
	2	Apply Activation Key	
	3	Formatting of Phone Numbers	79
	4	Format Phone Numbers on the Server	80
	5	Error Protocol	
		Phone Simulator	
Part VI		Installation	85
	1	Browser Support	85
	2	Single User Installation	86
		Install Call Center Adapter	
		Install Multiple Call Center Adapters	
		Call Wrap Up / Call Results	
		Expert Settings	
		Softphone Layout Install the application on the local PC	
		Minimum Configuration Settings	
		Check SoftPhone	102
	3	Network Installation	106
		Install Call Center Adapter	107
		Install Multiple Call Center Adapters	
		Call Wrap Up / Call Results Expert Settings	
		Softphone Layout	
		Copy all files to the server	
		Workstation Setup	121
		Check Softphone	
	4	Terminal Server	128

5

	Install files on Terminal Server	129
	Start installer package	
	Install files on the local PC	132
5	Activate Product	
	Buy Serial Number	137
	Online Activation	
	E-Mail Activation	
	Activation finished	
	Reinstall Software	
6	Install an update	144
7	Transfer license / Move to another computer	144
8	Installation FAQ	
	System Requirements - Operating system System Requirements - TAPI driver	147
	System Requirements - TAPI driver	148
	Where do I find the TAPI driver?	150
	How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce?	
	Errors - Call Center Adapter	
9	MAC OS X	161

# Part IX Part II - Enhanced Features

164

1 Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License	164
Demoversion	
Show License Information	
Apply Activation Key	
Deactivate a PC within a network	
Transfer license / Move to a new computer	
License Agreement	
2 How TOs and FAQ	176
How can I print this Tutorial	176
How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce?	176
System Requirements - TAPI driver	179
Where do I find the TAPI driver?	
I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration wizard	
Minimum Configuration Settings	
Troubleshooting - Outgoing calls	
Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls	186
Outgoing Call - never possible	186
Outgoing Call - w rong Prefix	187
Outgoing Call - Dial with Hyperlink not working	188
Outgoing Call - Postfix like # necessary	189
Outgoing Call - problem with Internal Number	189
Outgoing Call - Hotkey is not w orking	189
Troubleshooting - Incoming calls	189
Necessary configuration settings for caller identification	190
Incoming Call - never signalled	190
Incoming Call - w rong Prefix	191
Incoming Call - Caller Identification not working	191
Incoming Call - use address data stored in PBX	191
Incoming Call - w rong address information is displayed	192
Incoming Call - problem with Internal Number	192
Errors - Call Center Adapter	

How do I send a log file?	199
Special requirements for Access database in a network environment	199
How to use the Called ID (my number) for caller identification?	199
How can I suppress the notification of internal calls?	200
How can I dial with an Hotkey?	200
How can I dial with an Hyperlink?	201
How can I speed up dialling?	201
How can I check my version number?	201
How do I uninstall CTI Data Connector for Salesforce	202
I found no answer for my questions	202

# Index

## 203



#### 8 CTI Data Connector 4.0

# 1 Using this tutorial

This tutorial is an easy way to learn how to use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. It is designed for all office workers who want to benefit from Computer Telephony integration.

While completing these lessons, you will learn how to make an outgoing call, use the phone book or make the necessary configuration settings for your PBX system.

Part I explains the basics for using CTI Data Connector for Salesforce features, including how to make calls, receive calls or how to make personal configuration settings. Part II provides hands-on experience for using additional features like expert settings or database configuration.

## Using the help

Use the buttons 4 in the upper right corner to browse through the online help. To print one single page, use the button  $\square$ . Small images are enlarged if you click on it.

The Online Tutorial will be updated also after its release. In case you do not have Internet access, you can select the Offline version at in the Configuration Wizard.

### Print this tutorial

The Online Tutorial is also available as a PDF document.

You can print this tutorial - click on the link to download PDF file

### Update

- Update Version 3 to version 4 11
- <u>Service Pack 4.0.3 is available</u> [13] (October 2012)

recently added

Internal Phone numbers [99] (10/2012)

9

Assign Cases to a phone call [98] (7/2012) Support for Safari, Chrome, Firefox and Internet Explorer [85] (5/2012)

# **Copyrights and Trademarks**

Copyright © Mirage Computer Systems GmbH. All rights reserved.

Information in this document is subject to change without notice. The software described in this document is furnished under a <u>license agreement or non-disclosure agreement</u> The software may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of those agreements.

This documentation and the accompanying materials are for informational purpose only and property of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH. Information in this document is subject to change without notice. The names of companies, products, people, characters, and/or data mentioned herein are fictitious and are in no way intended to represent any real individual, company, product, or event, unless otherwise noted.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or any means electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording for any purpose other than the purchaser's personal use without the written permission of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH.

All products and company names mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owners. www.cti-data-connector.com

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Version: 4.0.3

This document was updated: 27.11.2012



# 2 Software Update

Right click on the the red salesforce icon *k*, select info. The *CTI Data Connector Version* should be **4.0.3** or higher **.** 

- Update Version 3 to 4 11
- Service Pack 4.0.3

# 2.1 Update Version 3 to 4

### **Modification history version 4**

■ For a complete list of all modifications click here

#### Call Center Adapter / SoftPhone

- Works with Internet Explorer, Firefox, Chrome and Safari Details see
- New Outgoing call from a **task** with a phone number, which is stored in multiple contact records. The phone note will be automatically assigned only to the contact who is assigned to the task
- Outgoing call from a **case**. The phone note is automatically assigned to this case. Necessary configuration settings 3

Adapter with default values for <u>Germany</u> [89] and <u>USA / Canada</u> [89]

Additional optimization for supported telephone number formats for **incoming and outgoing** calls. The phone number listed below will be recognized with incoming calls and for outgoing calls, the numbers are reformatted so that the PBX can use it to dial.

Numbers in brackets are samples if the caller is located in the USA.

- +49 7525 5293-39 (+1 646.257.3801)
- 0049/752593-39 (011 1 646.257.3801)
- +49 (0) 7525529339 (+1 (1) 646.257.38)
- 0049(0) 7525/529339 (0111 (1) 646.257.3801)
- 004907525/529339 (0111 1 646.257.3801) this is not a valid phone number format but it would work nevertheless
- 07525/529339 (1 646.257.3801)
- 529339 (257.3801)
- Fixed Link: My Calls Today works with different date formats

#### **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**

- New option: right mouse click : About Mirage Computer Systems GmbH. Displays the version number
- Changed The offline help is no longer included in the download package

#### **Configuration Wizard**

Changed TAPI driver name includes the extension number
Fixed Remove a prefix for incoming calls (e.g., TAPI driver sends 007525529339)

#### Installer

New Installs .NET 3.5 Framework if not installed yet
 New Automatically uninstalls version 3 or beta version 4
 New At the end of the installation a help 102 to check the SoftPhone is displayed
 Changed Improved 'Silent' Installation 121 to support the rollout of a large number of workstations

### **Update Eligibility**

The update is free, if version 3 was bought after **May**, **1st 2012** or you have a valid update subscription which expires after **June 10th 2012**.

### Installation of the Update

The update requires a **full new installation and a new Serial Number**. You will automatically get a Serial Number. In case you don't get one, contact Support@mirage-systems.de.

Uninstalling version 3 is not required (this will be done automatically).

#### **Singe User Installation**

- <u>Click here to download the update</u> (includes the latest service pack)
- Install Call Center Adapter 37 4. You can transfer the values from adapter 3
- Delete Call Center Adapter 3. If you update multiple single user installations, you can also remove a user from call center adapter 3 and add the user on adapter 4
- Uninstall version 3 (Control Panel, Programs and Features)
- Proceed with the steps explained here: Single User installation 1001.
- Activate the product with a new Serial Number 134

#### **Network Installation**

Version 3 and version 4 can be used at the same time. This allows you to make the transition for the workstations gradually.

- Click here to download the update (includes the latest service pack)
- Install Call Center Adapter 37 4. You can transfer the values from adapter 3
- Server installation 120
- Install one Client / Workstation 121 and activate the product with a new Serial Number 134
- Remove a user from call center adapter 3 and add the user on adapter 4
- Uninstall version 3 on the user machine (Control Panel, Programs and Features)
- Install additional clients / workstations 121

# 2.2 Service Pack 4.0.3

### **Modification history version 4.0.3**

■ For a complete list of all modifications click here

Call Center Adapter / SoftPhone

 New Internal Calls
 Image: Second second

New option - Expert Settings 97

Changed Call transfer using a hand set updates the phone status within the SoftPhone Changed Salesforce Adapter Version 4.0.2 is installed. This fixes a bug with lost

- connections where the SoftPhone did not respond after some time changed The log files for the salesforce adapter is now enabled when the log file option
  - of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is checked
- **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**

Fixed Crash when line is busy (only Cisco)

**Configuration Wizard** 

New Options: Use dialing rules for incoming calls, Use dialing rules for outgoing calls

Installer

Changed Changes for the Silent Setup

# **Update Eligibility**

The update is free for all users of version 4.

### Installation of the Update

The update requires a new installation of the Call Center Adapter.

Uninstalling version 4 of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is not required.

#### **Singe User Installation**

- Click here to download the update
- Generation Change the name of the call center adapter 4.0

Call Center Detail		Edit Delete Clone
General Information		
	Internal Name	CDCSFE400LD
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 4_OLD
	Description	Integration in salesforce call center adapter for CTI Data Connector
СТ	I Connector Progld	CDCSFEAdapter.CDCSFEAdapter.400

- Install <u>Call Center Adapter</u> [87] 4.0.3. You can transfer the values from adapter 4.0 manually
- Proceed with the steps explained here: Single User installation 1001.
- Either remove each user assigned to the adapter 4.0 depending on the installation progress or delete the adapter 4.0. This will remove all users. Assign the user(s) to adapter 4.0.3

#### **Network Installation**

Version 4.0 and 4.0.3 can only be installed at the same time, if version 4.0.3 is installed on a separate network folder. This allows you to make the transition for the workstations gradually. If the installation is done into the same folder, all workstations have to be updated immediately.

- Click here to download the update
- Generation Change the name of the call center adapter 4.0

Call Center Detail		Edit Delete Clone	
General Information			
	Internal Name	CDCSFE400LD	
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 4_OLD	
Description		Integration in salesforce call center adapter for CTI Data Connector	
CTI Connector Progld		CDCSFEAdapter.CDCSFEAdapter.400	

Install <u>Call Center Adapter</u> [87] 4.0.3. You can transfer the values from adapter 4.0 manually

- <u>Server installation</u> 120. In case you installed version 4.0.3 into a new folder, copy the license file cdcsfe.lic from the old folder into the new folder.
- Install one <u>Client / Workstation</u>
- Either remove each user assigned to the adapter 4.0 depending on the installation progress or delete the adapter 4.0. This will remove all users. Assign the user(s) to adapter 4.0.3
- Test the new version making an outgoing and incoming call
- Install additional clients / workstations 121



# 3 Part I - learning the basics

# 3.1 About Part I

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is an application which responds to **incoming** and **outgoing** calls in background mode. The only precondition for your PC / telephone system is a <u>TAPI interface</u> [148]. CTI Data Connector for Salesforce supports both a First Party solution (a phone is connected via serial interface or USB to the PC) and a Third Party solution (CTI Server).

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can be configured individually for every PC and is available with different options. Therefore you may not be able to use specific functions although they are described here.

Before you start using CTI Data Connector for Salesforce you have to set the configurations for the telephone system and the database(s). Normally, this is done during the installation. It is essential to make some basic configuration settings which are described in the chapter Minimum Configuration 22.



# 4 Introduction

# 4.1 Start the Application

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is either started automatically with the operating system or you start it within the program manager group **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**. After starting the program you will find an lcon in the system tray (notification area, down to the right near the date and time display).



You have to type in you salesforce login name and salesforce data before you can use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. If you get an error you probably have to install the salesforce Desktop Integration, *Connect for Office* - see details chapter Install Connect for Office.

By default, the icon is not visible on Vista and Windows 7 in the notification area. To show





This will open the Notification Area lcons control panel item. Select the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and in the pick list select: **Show icon and notification**.

Additionally add the red salesforce icon

# 4.2 Welcome Screen

By default, the Welcome Screen is opened after each program start. This screen provides you with:

- Links to most popular FAQ to get started
- Link to Online Knowledge Base
- Link to updates

The screen can be deactivated by checking *Do not display this Quick Introduction help anymore when starting* and activated again in the Configuration Wizard, <u>Display Quick</u> Introduction Help 64.



If you have any questions which are not answered by this tutorial, search in the

#### Online Knowledge Base.

www.mirage-systems.de

Use offline help

Do not display this Quick Introduction help anymore when starting

Ciose

If you don't have an Internet connection, select *offline help*. You also can change this setting in the configuration wizard, expert settings, screen <u>Help and Welcome</u> [63].

Depending on the program version, some options could be not available.

# 4.3 Minimum Configuration Settings

During installation, the <u>Configuration Wizard</u> was already started. You can define a lot of individual configuration settings there. The following settings **have to be defined** to guarantee a basic functionality.

- <u>TAPI device driver</u> [54] it is delivered by the telephone manufacturer. See also: <u>System</u> requirements <u>TAPI driver</u> [148]. If you don't have a TAPI driver yet, you can use the Telephone Simulator [27] for testing.
- Button <u>Dialing Rules</u> 70 configures country settings and area code. See also special configuration for US / Canada 71

Just by setting this minimum configuration you will be able to make outgoing calls and to identify incoming calls. The Configuration Wizard can be started any time by **right** click on the icon 23, option Configuration Wizard 51.

> CTI Data Con	nector for Salesfor	rce Configuratio	n Wizard	×
incoming calls. After	ure CTI Data Conne the installation, indi button Help to learn	vidual settings ca	n be done with the	Configuration
Telephony service p	rovider/TAPI device ator >	driver:		
Dialing Rules				
<u>H</u> elp	<u>C</u> ancel	< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	<u>F</u> inish

See also

Where do I find the TAPI driver? [150] System requirements - TAPI driver [148]

# 4.4 Taskbar - Control Basic Functions

After the program start, the taskbar (notification area, down to the right near the date and time) will display the icon



CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is ready and will respond to incoming and outgoing calls.

You can control basic functions via the icon

• with a **single** click on the **right mouse button** you select options such as redialing or service programs

L.

• with a **single** click on the **left mouse button** you operate phone functions (pick up call, hold, transfer 43), hang up)

During the signaling of a call by the Desktop Notification the control via the taskbar icon will not be available.

#### Hovering above icon with the mouse pointer

If you hover above the icon with the mouse pointer, the message CTI Data Connector for Salesforce - 0 call(s) will appear. The amount of incoming and outgoing calls during the last restart will be displayed.

The options in detail:

- Blue Icon Left Mouse Click 24
- Blue Icon Right Mouse Click 24

#### 4.4.1 Blue Icon - Left Mouse Click

Single left mouse click on the blue icon

This function will be only available **during an active call** and is designed for phoning with a headset. The individual options will be displayed depending on the status of the call.

- When ringing: Answer, reject or transfer 43 call
- When the call is active: Hold, <u>transfer</u> 43 or disconnect call. If the call is on hold, you will have these options: Answer or Disconnect

#### 4.4.2 Blue Icon - Right Mouse Click

# Single right mouse click on the blue icon

Here you can choose from different options. Depending on the configuration it is possible that not all options will be available:

Configuration Wizard - starts the Configuration Wizard

- Show License Information 77 displays the license information
- Help opens this tutorial the type of the help system (<u>Online / Offline</u> 3) can be set in the configuration wizard
- About CTI Data Connector for Salesforce display version information
- <u>Restart Salesforce SoftPhone</u>
- Quit Terminates CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

### 4.5 First Steps

After starting 19 CTI Data Connector for Salesforce you can access all functions via the icon in the taskbar 23.

To practice, try to make an outgoing call using the Hotkey 34, which should work with all



**N** 

applications.

# 4.6 Navigation within the Control Centre

Nearly all functions can be accessed via the file menu, the <u>toolbar</u> at or by clicking on the right mouse button above the lcon in the taskbar.

	<u>File Menu</u> 25 <u>Status</u>	Elle Edit View Extras ? Call information 0 call(s) waiting	•8
line	<u>Status</u> Toolbar	Address:         IIII         IIIII         IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Who is calling? You know the answer instantly!
		Answer Reject Transfer Call	
		Help	Dial

# **Overview over the File Menu**

File	
• Close: Closes the program window, but does not terminate the application	
Quit: Terminates CTI Data Connector for Salesforce	
Edit	
<ul> <li>Cut: Deletes the selected text and copies it to the clipboard</li> <li>Copy: Copies the selected text to the clipboard</li> <li>Paste: Pastes the contents of the clipboard into the selected field</li> <li>Delete: Deletes the selected text</li> </ul>	

#### CTI Data Connector 4.0

- Quick Dialing: Displays a submenu of the quick dialing list (only available within quick dialing)
- List: Displays a submenu within the call history list (only available within this list)
- Search: Displays the phone book for searching for an address

#### View

26

- Call information: displays call information
- Phone and Quick dialing: Displays the phone and the quick dialing list for outgoing calls
- Phone book: Displays the phone book for searching for an address
- Call History (outgoing / incoming calls): Displays the call history

#### **Extras**

- Format phone numbers: Activates the function for formatting the phone numbers 79
- Configuration Wizard: Starts the Configuration Wizard 51
- Error protocol: Displays a log and of the last system messages
- Always on top: Defines whether the control centre of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will always in the foreground when a call is coming in (the window will cover any other applications and you cannot switch to them) or whether the control centre will pop up and you can switch to other applications
- **Compact salesforce database**: Compact the salesforce database for caller identification. This is normally done automatically

#### ?

- Help: Displays context-sensitive help information (help for the currently displayed screen)
- Contents: Displays this tutorial
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce on the Web: Displays the internet page of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce
- Software Service: Checks for new Updates 11
- %OEMNAME%> on the Web: Displays the website of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH
- About CTI Data Connector for Salesforce: Displays version information about the installed application

• Show License Information: Displays the <u>purchased licenses</u> 77 and allows to type in Activation Keys for adding new licenses

The following options are only available after the product was activated (full version)

- Backup License make an online backup of the license file
- Restore License restore the online backup of the license file
- Deactivate License transfer the license to another PC

## 4.7 Phone Simulator

If you have no TAPI-enabled phone available and you want to test CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, you can use the simulator which works like a regular telephone.

## Activating the Simulator

Start the <u>Configuration Wizard</u> and choose the page where you can select your <u>telephony service provider</u> **5**. Choose **Telephone Simulator**. When you start CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, the simulator will be started automatically.

## Working with the Simulator

The telephone simulator acts like a normal telephone with which you can make outgoing calls and accept incoming calls.

Phone simulator	
0044734273834	Type in phone number
	Button for <b>Dial,</b> Pick up, Hang up
	You can use the keyboard to make a call

### Simulating an incoming call

- Type in a phone number (without country code and special characters) in the display. You can alternatively use the keyboard to type in the number.
- Press the button **Dial**
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce performs the caller identification and signals the incoming call
- Accept the incoming call by pressing the button Pick up
- You can disconnect the call by pressing the button Hang up

## Simulating an outgoing call

- Search in the phone book of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce for an address or a contact person and dial by double-clicking on the phone number. You can dial alternatively by highlighting a phone number 34 and pressing the configured Hotkey 56.
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce displays the dialled address
- Establish the call by pressing the button Pick up
- You can disconnect the call by pressing the button Hang up



# 5 Make Phone Calls

## 5.1 Outgoing Calls

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce provides multiple options to make an outgoing call dependent on the application your are using. The option <u>Dial with an Hotkey</u> 34 should work in any application.

All available options are:

- Dial within <u>Salesforce</u> 32
- Dial using a Hotkey 34
- Dial within the Browser 35
- Dial with a Hyperlink 36
- Dial using the Clipboard 38
- Redial 38 using the last called phone number
- Dial using the telephone set 38 the dialled address will be displayed

By default, the icon is not visible on Vista and Windows 7 in the notification area. To show

the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce in the system tray, click on the up arrow. Click on **Customize**.



This will open the Notification Area lcons control panel item. Select the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and in the pick list select: **Show icon and notification**.

CTI CTI Data Connector - Office Edition - 0 Ruf(e)	Show icon and notifications
---	-----------------------------

Additionally add the red salesforce icon



### 5.1.1 Format of a Telephone Number

CTI Data Connector does not care whether phone numbers are stored unstructured or include special characters. It is only important that the numbers comply with the international phone number format. Telephone numbers can be stored as follows:

Numbers in brackets are samples if the caller is located in the USA.

- +49 7525 5293-39 (+1 646.257.3801)
- 0049/752593-39 (011 1 646.257.3801)
- +49 (0) 7525529339 (+1 (1) 646.257.38)
- 0049(0) 7525/529339 (0111 (1) 646.257.3801)
- 004907525/529339 (0111 1 646.257.3801) this is not a valid phone number format but it would work nevertheless
- 07525/529339 (1 646.257.3801)
- 529339 (257.3801)

After the country code the number 0 should be surrounded by brackets or be omitted. If the number 0 is not surrounded by brackets, then CTI Data Connector for Salesforce uses the dialing settings stored in windows to either truncate the 0 or leave the 0 (e.g. for Italy).

#### Example

- 004402089481345 would result in 00442089481345
- 003902089481345 would result in 003902089481345

### 5.1.2 Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls

Below find a list of configuration settings which have an impact on outgoing calls. If outgoing calls are not working, check these settings and also check <u>Troubleshooting -</u> Outgoing calls 185.

#### **Configuration Settings**

- Select correct TAPI driver 54
- <u>PBX Configuration</u> [69] especially dial tone digits for external calls
- Dialing Rules 70 for US / Canada check additional settings 71
- TAPI Configuration Prefix Outgoing Calls 60
- TAPI Configuration Provider Postfix 61
- TAPI Configuration Ignore Fake Number 61

#### CTI Data Connector 4.0

32

- Dial via Hotkey 34 configure 56 Hotkey and activate this option 53
- <u>Dial within Browser</u> 35] <u>activate this option</u> 53]
- Dial with a Hyperlink [201] activate this option [53]

If internal numbers are not dialled correct, check:

- TAPI Configuration Prefix internal number 61
- Minimum length 70 of phone number indicating an external call

### 5.1.3 Dial within Salesforce

There are different options to make an outgoing call (requires the installation of the salesforce <u>call center adapter</u>) [137]

# Making a Call Using Click-to-Dial

All phone numbers will have a green phone icon 5.

To make a call directly from the phone field of a contact, lead, activity, or account

- Locate the number that you want to dial in a contact, lead, activity, or account.
- Click the button to the right of the number. The number is automatically dialed in the first open SoftPhone line.

<u>Note</u>

- A number that has already been clicked cannot be clicked again for five seconds.
- The button does not appear next to fax numbers.

## Use the SoftPhone to dial

You can type in a phone number in the SoftPhone

- In the SoftPhone, click the name of the open line that you want to use. This action opens the dial pad for that line.
- Enter the phone number that you want to dial by clicking the number buttons on the dial pad, or by typing numbers on your keyboard.
- Click **Dial** or press the Enter key on your keyboard.

Ente	r phone n	umber to dia	ıl
Ţ			9
	2	Dial	
	1	2	3
	4	5	6
	7	8	9
	*	0	#

# Making a Call Using the Call Center Directory

To make a call using the call center directory:

- In the SoftPhone, click the name of the open line that you want to use. This action opens the dial pad for that line.
- Click 🕙 next to the dial pad to open your call center directory.
- Use the directory to locate the number that you want to dial.
- When you have found the number, click the name associated with the number to automatically enter the number into the dial pad.
- Click **Dial** or press the Enter key on your keyboard.

	for Calls	-
O <u>Line 1</u> 0	pen	
Enter phone n	umber to dia	ling -
		9
2	Dial	(
1	2	3
4	5	6
7	8	9
	0	#
×	Hide Dialpa	d



34

For more information about the salesforce *call center adapter* search in the salesforce online help using the search term: **call center adapter overview** 

### 5.1.4 Dial with a Hotkey

In nearly any application a phone number can be **highlighted** and dialed using the Hotkey defined in the <u>configuration settings</u> [56]. The default value is the key F10.

Highlight the phone number within the Web Browser by pressing down the left mouse key and dragging the mouse cursor to the right. When reaching the end of the phone number, release the left mouse button and press F10.

In the example below a phone number has been highlighted. It can be dialed using the defined Hotkey.

© 2012 Mirage Computer Systems	GmbH

#### 1 • 1 • 1 • 🔏 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 2 • 1 • 3 • 1 • 4 • 1 • 5 • 1 • 6 • 1 • 7

United Whiskey Destilleries Ltd Freemont Tower 3 Perkins Bridge Windsor SL44QQ United Kingdom

Phone: ++44734273833

#### See also

<u>Troubleshooting - Hotkey is not working</u> Configuration - <u>Hotkey to dial with a highlighted phone number</u> Configuration - <u>Activate dialing via Hotkey</u> 53

#### 5.1.5 Dial within the Browser

Within an Browser any phone number can be **highlighted** and dialled with 2 different options.

Highlight the phone number within the Web Browser by pressing down the left mouse key and dragging the mouse cursor to the right. When reaching the end of the phone number, release the left mouse button. You can dial:

- Using the **right mouse button**. The option **Dial with CTI Data Connector for Salesforce** will be displayed
- Using a <u>Hotkey</u> 34

In the example below a phone number has been highlighted within a browser application. It can be dialled using the Hotkey or right mouse click, **Dial with CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**. You have to activate *Dialing within Browser* and *Dialing via Hotkey* within the <u>configuration settings</u> [53].

n - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
🗟 • 😓 🖂 🖸 🕵 🛍	1 🕄
1	
Cases Documents Reports Da	shboards Solutions
ew Document   New Task   Recycle Bin	
Edit Delete Sharing	Printable View
	Phone: ++44734273833
eries Ltd. [ <u>View Hierarchy]</u>	Fax:
	Wahaita

⚠

Dialing with right mouse button is available only in the **Internet Explorer** 

#### See also

Enable dialing within Browser 57

### 5.1.6 Dial with a Hyperlink

It is possible to instantly use the option <u>Dial with a Hotkey</u> <sup>34</sup> to dial. An optimum integration can be achieved by using a link to dial within the Lead, Contact or Account page.

#### <u>Advantage</u>

• It is just one click instead highlight a phone number and press a key
• You can dial from any list view or report

**Disadvantage** 

• You need to implement a field in salesforce.com for each phone number

To implement the function you have to create a new custom formula text field. This is explained for contacts.

- 1. Within Salesforce, select Setup, Customize, Contacts, Fields
- 2. Create a new custom formula field of the type Text
- 3. Name it "Call Main Phone"
- 4. Use this syntax HYPERLINK("callto://"&Phone,"Click to dial")
- 5. Change the layout for the contact page so that the new "Call Main Phone" field is directly under the "phone" field.

You can add the mobile phone number with another formula field. HYPERLINK("callto://"&MobilePhone,"Click to dial")

Your screen should look like this

Email:	marketing@mirage-systems.de
Phone:	213.232.0874
Extension:	
Call Main Phone:	Click to dial
Mobile:	+49160865432
Call Mobile:	Click to dial
Skype:	Miragecomputer

Add the fields for the Account and Lead screen.

Account: HYPERLINK("callto://"&Phone,"Click to dial") Lead: HYPERLINK("callto://"&Phone,"Click to dial")

### Create smart views and reports

The new fields can be added in any Views or Reports. This allows dialing directly from the view: 'all open leads' or any report.

#### See also

Enable Dial with a Hyperlink Troubleshooting - Dial with a Hyperlink is not working Configuration - Application used for dialing with Hyperlink 56

#### 5.1.7 Dial with the Clipboard

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is able to analyze the clipboard contents and to extract a phone number.

If you copy a phone number using *CTRL+C / Edit Copy* into the clipboard, you can dial the number by clicking on the icon in the taskbar 23 with the right mouse button and selecting the option dial from clipboard. CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will analyze the clipboard contents and dial the first phone number found.

### See also

Troubleshooting - Hotkey is not working [188] Configuration - Hotkey to dial phone number from the clipboard [56]

### 5.1.8 Redial - using last called phone number

This option is only accessible with a right click on the phone icon <sup>S</sup>, option **Redialing**. It dials the phone number last used.

### 5.1.9 Dial with the Telephone Set

You can dial with your telephone set just as you have done previously. CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will recognize this dial automatically displaying the address with the contact person you are calling either within the Desktop Notification window or the caller information box.

## 5.2 Incoming Calls

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce offers a sophisticated caller identification.

The phone number of the caller is searched in Leads, Accounts or Contacts and displayed in the <u>SoftPhone</u> 41.

Watch a demo video 39

### 5.2.1 Video Tutorial

First watch the video, how the caller identification is working. Click on an image to start the video.



**Tutorials** 

## **CTI Data Connector for salesforce**



**Incoming Calls** 



### **CTI Data Connector for salesforce**



### 5.2.2 Necessary configuration settings for caller identification

Below is a list of configuration settings which have an impact on the caller identification. If the caller identification is not working, check these settings and also check Troubleshooting - Incoming calls [18].

Address information used for caller identification Salesforce Lead, Account, Contact

• Addresses stored in the PBX system 75

### **Configuration Settings**

- Select correct TAPI driver 54
- Configuration Caller Identification 73
- TAPI Configuration truncate incoming phone number at
- TAPI Configuration Prefix incoming call 60
- TAPI Configuration Don't signal updated phone number during a call 62

If internal numbers are not identified correct, check:

- TAPI Configuration Prefix internal number 61
- Minimum length 70 of phone number indicating an external call

### 5.2.3 Salesforce SoftPhone

Incoming calls are signaled in the salesforce SoftPhone on the left side of the screen.

## SoftPhone

Depending on the call state, buttons are enabled or disabled e.g. to hold or end a call.

The fields, which are displayed on the SoftPhone , can be configured in the <u>SoftPhone</u> Layout  $\boxed{92}$ 

Ready for Calls
O Line 1
Caller ID 00044734273833
Dialed 00044734273833 Number
Duration 01:28
Account United Whiskey
Account Customer - Chan Type
Account <u>D98765</u> Number
🛪 End Call
Hold
✓ Current Call Log
Log will auto-save when call ends.
Subject Call 05.06.2011 18:54
Related To Account: United Whiskey
Comments is interested in CTI Data A Conector. Send quote
Last Call

You can can type in a phone note (comment) which is **automatically** saved in the activity history including the *call type* (incoming / outgoing call) and *call duration*.

## Call Result (Wrap Up)

After the call is terminated, you can benchmark the call by selecting a Call Result. This feature has to be turned on in the <u>call center adapter configuration</u> [91]. It is saved with the phone note as an activity and is available for reporting. See *Call Center Reports* in salesforce.

🜔 Wrap Up 💌
O Line 1 Open
▼ Current Call Log
Subject Call 18.06.2011 14:34
Related To [To relate a record to this call, navigate to it in the main window.]
Comments Interested in CTI Data Connector. 25 licenses.
<b>v</b>
Call Send Quote Result O No interest in product Include in campaign A
Done

9

For more information about the salesforce *call center adapter* search in the salesforce online help using the search term: **call center adapter overview** 

### 5.2.4 Missed Calls (red icon)

If a call is missed, the phone icon turns red



. You can now:

- · Left mouse double click on the icon to directly open the dialog for missed calls
- Right mouse click on the icon, select Call History (incoming calls) opens the dialog for missed calls

After opening the Call History, the icon color turns back to blue



## 5.3 Transfer a Call

Call Transfer allows to transfer a call from your phone to any other phone. This feature is only available during an **active** call.

A call transfer is a mechanism that enables a user to relocate an **active** call to another telephone by using the *call transfer* button and dialing the required location. The transferred call is either **announced** or unannounced (*blind transfer*).

If the transferred call is **announced**, the desired party/extension is notified of the impending transfer. This is done by putting the caller on hold and dialing the desired party/ extension; they are then notified and, if they choose to accept the call, it is transferred over to them.

On the other hand, an unannounced (**blind**) transfer is self-explanatory: it is transferred without notifying the desired party/extension of the impending call. It is simply transferred to their line typing in the phone number and terminating the call.

Both options (announced and blind) are supported by CTI Data Connector for Salesforce **but not by all TAPI drivers**. If a TAPI driver does not support the transfer feature, this option will not be available in CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

The way how this feature works in detail depends on the PBX and TAPI driver.

### 5.3.1 Announced Transfer

If the transferred call is **announced**, the desired party/extension is notified of the impending transfer. This is done by putting the caller on hold and dialing the desired party/ extension; they are then notified and, if they choose to accept the call, it is transferred over to them.

During an active call you can either

- Left click on the phone icon an select *Transfer Call* or
- Use the *Transfer Call* button within the Control Centre 25

A new screen appears. Type in the number to which the call should be transferred and press the button *Transfer Call*.

🕜 Transfer Call	$\mathbf{X}$
Transfer call to this number:	
02089481345	
Transfer Call	Complete transfer
Blind Transfer	

You then have 2 options:

- Press Back to Active Call to talk again with the caller or
- Press Complete Transfer to transfer the call to the desired party

#### See also

Blind Transfer 44

#### 5.3.2 Blind Transfer

A **blind transfer** is a call without notifying the desired party/extension of the impending call. It is simply transferred to their line typing in the phone number and terminating the call.

During an active call you can either

- Left click on the phone icon an select *Transfer Call* or
- Use the Transfer Call button within the Control Centre 25

A new screen appears. Type in the number to which the call should be transferred and press *Blind Transfer*. The call is transferred to the desired party.

🙆 Transfer Call	$\mathbf{X}$
Transfer call to this number:	
02089481345	
Transfer Call	Complete transfer
Blind Transfer	

### See also

Announced Transfer 43

## 5.4 Service Cloud Console

The Service Cloud Console requires a special setup within Salesforce. See Salesforce help for detail information.

The SoftPhone options in the Service Cloud Console are a bit different in comparison to the standard Salesforce setup.



# Main Screen - Service Cloud Console

Using the Service Cloud console, the SoftPhone is hidden in the lower right corner of the

window. Click on the icon

to open the SoftPhone

Accounts					,
II Accounts	Edit   Delete   Create	New View			e 0
ew Account		AB	CDEFGHIJK	LMNOPQRSI	T U V W X Y Z Other All
Action Account Name ↑	Account Site	Billing State/Province	Phone	Туре	Owner Alias
Edit   Del Burlington Textiles Co	orp of	NC	(336) 222-7000 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del Dickenson plc		KS	+1(785) 241-6200 %	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del Die Idee GmbH			089/1250-0	Prospect	MI
Edit   Del Edge Communications	2	TX	+1(512) 757-6000 %	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del Express Logistics an	d Tran	OR	(503) 421-7800 %	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del Firma 1			075256991		MI
Edit   Del GenePoint		CA	(650) 867-3450	Customer - Channel	М
Edit   Del Grand Hotels & Reso	rts Ltd	IL.	(312) 596-1000 🍾	Customer - Direct	M
Edit   Del International Ltd		United Kingdom	00442073330033		MI
Edit   Del Mirage Computer Sys	tems		07525529339		MI
Edit   Del Pyramid Construction	Inc.		(014) 427-4427	Customer - Channel	M
Edit   Del sForce		CA	(415) 901-7000 %		MI
Edit   Del SR Test					MI
Edit   Del United Oil & Gas Corp	<u>).</u>	NY	+1(212) 842-5500 %	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del United Oil & Gas, Sind	apore	Singapore	(650) 450-8810	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del United Oil & Gas, UK		UK	+44 191 4956203	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del United Whiskey Desti	lleries	SL44QQ	+44734273833 🍾	Customer - Channel	М
Edit   Del University of Arizona		AZ	(520) 773-9050 🍾	Customer - Direct	М
18 of 18 💌 0 Selected 💌		📢 🖣 Previous	Next 🕨 🕪		Page 1 o

Service Cloud Console - Main Screen

# **Incoming Call**

Incoming calls are signaled in the Salesforce SoftPhone on the **right** side of the screen. The Lead/Account/Contact details are displayed in a **new TAB**. For more details of the SoftPhone functionality see <u>Salesforce SoftPhone</u>

salesforce	Search All *	Search	Μ	lirage Computer	▼ Help	Sample Console	•
Accounts	💐 Edge Communicatio						•
💐 Edge Communications	🢐 Ms. Rose Gonzalez	· ·					-
Ms. Rose Gor	nzalez					2 🗈 🖯	
Opportunities	s [0]   Cases [1]   Open Ad	ivities [0]   Activity History [0]   Campai	gn History [0]   Notes & .	Attachments [0]   H	ITML Email Statu	<u>s [0]</u>	=
Contact Detail	E	dit Delete Clone Request Update					
Contact Owner	Mirage Computer [Change]		Phone	(512) 757-6000			
Name	Ms. Rose Gonzalez		Home Phone				
Account Name	Edge Communications		Mobile	(512) 757-9340	On a Ca		
Title	SVP, Procurement		Other Phone				
Department	Procurement		Fax	(512) 757-9000	O Line 1 On	Call	
Birthdate	3/26/1959		Email	rose@edge.com	Caller ID	05127576000	
Reports To	[View Org Chart]		Assistant		Duration	00:31	_
Lead Source	Trade Show		Asst. Phone		Contact	Rose Gonzalez	- 11
Mailing Address	313 Constitution Place		Other Address		Department	Procurement SVP,	-11
	Austin, TX 78767 USA				Title	Procuremen	-
	000				Languages	English	
✓ Interaction Log		Save Log	Save & New Log		Assistant's Nam		
Name Ms. Rose Gonzalez	v	Related To Account: Edge Com	munication 🗸	Enter your n			~
Subject Call 12/31/2011 5:25	PM 🗸				~	End Call Hold	
							-
						🦻 Pho	ne

Incoming Call - SoftPhone

# Interaction Log

The special feature of the Service Cloud Console is the Interaction Log. You enter the phone note in the Interaction Log and not in the SoftPhone. When the phone call ends, the data is automatically saved as an activity.

ccounts		💐 Edge Co	mmunications									
Edge C	ommunications	🦉 Ms. Ros	e Gonzalez			•						0
	ntact Is. Rose Gon	zalez									⊻₽⇔⊘	Í
	Opportunities	[0]   <u>Cases [1</u>	]   Open Activities [0]	Activity	History [0]	Campaigr	n History [0]   N	otes & A	ttachments [0]   H	ML Email Statu	<u>101</u>	
Contac	t Detail		Edit Del	ete Clone	e Request U	pdate						
	Contact Owner	Mirage Comp	uter [Change]				P	hone	(512) 757-6000 5			
	Name	Ms. Rose Go	nzalez				Home P	hone				
	Account Name	Edge Commu	nications				м	obile	(512) 757-9340			
	Title	SVP, Procure	ement				Other P	hone			-40	8
	Department	Procurement						Fax	(512) 757-9000			
	Birthdate	3/26/1959					E	mail	rose@edge.com			
	Reports To	View Org C	hart]				Assi	stant				
	Lead Source	Trade Show					Asst. P	hone				
	Mailing Address	313 Constitut Austin, TX 70 USA					Other Add	iress				
nteract	tion Log				Save	Log	Save & New Lo	g				
Name	Ms. Rose Gonzalez	~	Re	elated To	Account: Edg	ge Commu	unication 🗸		Enter your no	tes here		
Subject	Call 12/31/2011 5:25 F	9M 💌									Ŧ	

Interaction Log - Enter phone note

## 5.5 Reports

All phone calls are stored as a task and are a available in salesforce reports. The default salesforce call center reports can be found in the folder: *Call Center Reports*.

Leads	Accounts	Contacts	Opportunities	Forecasts	Contracts	Cases	Solutions	Products	Reports	Do
·	all Cent	ter Rep	orts							
_	all Center Rej			e New Folder						
							Create	New Custom	Report	
Report Na	ame					Descri	ption			
My Team'	's Calls This W	Veek				What c	alls have my a	gents handle	d this week?	
My Calls	Today					What c	alls have I han	dled today?		
My Calls	This Week					What c	alls have I han	dled this wee	k? 🔓	

You can create any type of reports like

- Incoming calls of a day or week
- Calls where nobody could be reached (call duration is empty or 0)

• Report about the <u>call results</u> 42

If you create a report select report category: *Activities* and report type: *Tasks and Events* 

Example





# 6 Configuration Wizard

## 6.1 Introduction

The Configuration Wizard of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce offers several steps for making configuration settings. You can navigate through the pages with the buttons **Next** and **Back**. To apply the new settings, the program for formatting phone numbers 79 will be automatically started on the local PC.

The Configuration Wizard can have **different options and steps depending on the installation**. The maximum is 6 steps and an introduction page. Note that this description may differ from your installation. It is mandatory to configure the minimum configuration  $\boxed{22}$ .

## How to start the Configuration Wizard?

Start the Configuration Wizard by clicking on the icon in the taskbar <sup>23</sup> with the right mouse button and select the option **Configuration Wizard** or select the menu *Extras* - **Configuration Wizard** in the control centre <sup>24</sup>.

## **Overview of all configuration steps**

- Introduction Select the language 52 for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce
- Configuration of the <u>TAPI device driver</u> [54], <u>Hotkeys</u> [56], <u>Expert Settings</u> [58] and <u>Browser</u> <u>Dialing</u> [57]
- Configuration of the PBX [69] and Caller Identification [73]

# 6.2 Select Language

52

ntroduction Welcome to the Cor settings. You will ge button 'Help'.			
Language:			
English		$\odot$	
Skin (design):			
beryl.urf		$\odot$	
☑ <u>A</u> lways show the show t	nis page		

## Language

You can select the language for the application.

# Skin (Design)

A skin changes the look & feel (design) of the application. Just try to find the one you like best.

Skin in Design Racer	<ul> <li>Configuration Wizard</li> <li>Introduction</li> <li>Welcome to the Configuration Wizard. This wizard supports you with personal configuration settings. You will get an extensive description in every configuration step by pressing the button 'Help'.</li> </ul>
Green	Language:         English         Skin (design):         Image:         Image:
	Skin in Design Wine

If you want to skip this screen in the future, deselect Always show this page.

# 6.3 TAPI device driver, Hotkey, Expert Settings, Browser Dialling

Here you can configure the  $\underline{\text{TAPI driver}}$  and the dialing options which should be activated.

- Activate dialing within a Browser 57
- Activate dialing via Hyperlink 57
- Activate dialing via Hotkey 56

If available, the dialog for Expert Settings 58 can be started. Using the button Hotkey 56,

54

you can configure the <u>Hotkey</u> 34 combination for outgoing calls.

Telephony ser	vice provider/TAPI devid	ce driver:	
	vices for FRITZ!Box		
	aling via Hyperlink aling via Hotke <u>y</u>		

#### 6.3.1 TAPI Driver

Select the TAPI device driver for incoming and outgoing calls from the list box. See details for TAPI - Where do I find the TAPI driver?

With the button a window can be opened where all functions supported by the TAPI driver will be shown.

With the driver < Telephone Simulator > CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can be tested with a phone simulator <math>27 if no TAPI enabled phone is available.

elect the telephony service provider/TA mulator> to activate a phone simulator	API device driver which will be used r for testing.	d. Use <telephone< th=""></telephone<>
elephony service provider/TAPI device	e driver:	
AVM TAPI Services for FRITZ!Box	· · · ·	
<ul> <li>Activate dialing within Browser</li> <li>Activate dialing via Hyperlink</li> <li>Activate dialing via Hotkey</li> </ul>		

If your TAPI driver is not listed here see: <u>I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration</u> wizard

See also Where do I find this screen? 53 System Requirements 148 TAPI driver Where do I find the TAPI driver? 150

### 6.3.2 Configure Hotkeys

56

Hotkeys are used to dial with a shortcut from any application. You first have to select <u>Activate dialing via Hotkey</u> [53] before it can be used. Press the button *Hotkey* for configuration.

## Hotkey to dial highlighted phone number

This Hotkey allows to dial by highlighting a phone number and press the Hotkey. For details see <u>Dial with a Hotkey</u> 34. The default value is **F10**.

Hotkey Here you can defi phone number.	ne a system-wide Hotkey. If pressed, will dial the selected	f c c c	You can choose any key combination (e.g. CTRL + ALT + F10) for outgoing calls. You should select a combination that is not used by other programs.
	Hotkey to dial highlighted phone number Modifiers CTRL MENU SHIFT		
	Hotkey to dial phone number from dipboard Modifiers CTRL MENU SHIFT Hotkey W W		
Help	Hotkey - waiting time to read clipboard(ms): 90		

## Hotkey to dial phone number from the clipboard

This Hotkey allows to dial a phone number which is stored in the clipboard. For details see <u>Dial with the Clipboard</u> 38. The default value is CTRL + MENU + SHIFT + W to make sure that other programs are not affected. If you use this functionality change the default to a value which:

© 2012 Mirage Computer Systems GmbH

- is not used by other programs
- which can be accessed easily e.g. CTRL+C = Copy value to clipboard CTRL + D = dial (note: CTRL D could be used by other applications for the delete function)

## Hotkey - waiting time to read clipboard

If the Hotkey 34 for dialing is not working, then either the Hotkey is already in use (change Hotkey) or other applications like the Office clipboard manager are blocking the clipboard. The Hotkey copies the phone number into the clipboard and therefore needs access to the clipboard. Increase the waiting time before information of the clipboard will be read. The time is specified in a thousandth part of a second. Default time is 10 = 1 hundredth part of a second. The maximum value is 98.

### See also

Where do I find this screen? 53 <u>Troubleshooting - Hotkey is not working</u> Dial with the Clipboard 38 <u>Dial with a Hotkey</u> 34

### 6.3.3 Configure dial options for Browser

There are 2 Browser options which can be enabled.

## Activate dialing within Browser

This option allows to dial via right mouse click within the Browser. For details see <u>Dial</u> within the Browser 35.



Dial with right mouse button is available only in the Internet Explorer

## Activate dialing via Hyperlink

This option allows to dial via Hyperlink. For details see Dial with a Hyperlink 2011.

Dialing via <u>Hotkey</u><sup>56</sup> is also working within a Browser.

#### See also

<u>Where do I find this screen?</u> [53] <u>Troubleshooting - Dial with a Hyperlink is not working</u> [108] Configuration - <u>Application used for dialing with Hyperlink</u> [56]

## 6.4 Expert Settings

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce allows to configure a lot of additional settings which have an impact on:

- Handling of a call
- Provide a workaround for TAPI driver issues
- Handling of the development interface to other applications
- and other specific settings



Only experienced users should change these settings

Depending on the system configuration, this option can be disabled. Otherwise press the button *Expert Settings* in Step 1 of the Configuration Wizard.

	ony service provider/ ivate a phone simulat		which will be used	d. Use <telephone< th=""></telephone<>
elephony servic	ce provider/TAPI devi	ce driver:		
AVM TAPI Servi	ces for FRITZ!Box	$\overline{\bullet}$		
✓ Activate diali	ing within Browser			
	ing via Hyperlink			
	ing via Hotkey			
	ing the the start			
		Evner	t Settings	Hotkey

60

**CTI Data Connector 4.0** 

### 6.4.1 TAPI Configuration

The following settings have an impact on the TAPI interface or call handling.

TAPI Configuration	Help and Welcome	Development API	Miscellaneous Settings
External call - Pr	efix		
Incoming		C <u>u</u> t prefixes	
Outgoing		<u>P</u> lace prefixes	
Prefix for internal	numbers:		
Provider Postfix:			
Truncate incoming	phone number at:		
Ignore Fake Numb	er:		
📃 Don't signal up	dated phone number	r during a call	
Controlling CT	Application		
Activate call lo	aaina		Send Log file

### **External call - Prefix**

If the TAPI driver adds a prefix for an external call, this prefix can be removed. Otherwise prefixes can be added before the number is dialed.

#### Example

The phone number 0734273830 is signalled as **0**0734273830. In this case the prefix 0 has to be removed to allow a correct caller identification.

If the TAPI driver signals the incoming phone number **without a leading 0**, then configure: Place prefix, Incoming.

### Example

The phone number 0734273830 is signalled as 734273830. In this case the prefix 0 has to be added for incoming calls to allow a correct caller identification.

By default, the prefix to get an outside line is added as *Outgoing, cut prefix* to automatically remove the prefix after dialing.

# **Prefix for internal numbers**

This function allows to place a prefix **in front of** an internal number. It is not used for dialling - only for **incoming and outgoing caller identification**.

### Example

For all employees the complete phone number is stored in the database, e.g. 07342/7383-12. For an incoming call, only the extension number is signalled, e.g. 12. In order to find the name of the calling person, the prefix 7383 has to be added. Additionally, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce adds the area code, configured in the country settings [53].

Configure **7383** for the prefix which will firstly create the number 738312 and then will add the area code. This results in the new number 07342738312 which will allow to identify the caller.

## **Provider Postfix**

This function allows to add a postfix at the end of a phone number for outgoing calls.

### Example

IP providers often require a # at the end of the phone number to dial the number instantly.

Configure # for the postfix which would dial 07342738312#

## Truncate incoming phone number at:

This option is needed with IP phones and a TAPI driver which passes the phone number with IP information.

Example

The phone number is passed as <u>0734273830@myprovider.com</u>. This option allows to truncate all characters after the specified character - e.g. @.

## Ignore Fake Number

Some TAPI drivers firstly send a special number for **outgoing or incoming calls** and then the correct phone numbers. To allow for the special number being treated as a fake

#### 62 CTI Data Connector 4.0

number being ignored, configure the fake number.

#### Example

The TAPI driver firstly sends 879 and then the correct phone number.

Configure 879 as the fake number.

You can configure a list of numbers, separated by a semicolon.

<u>Example</u> 879;888;890

### Don't signal updated phone number during a call

If a phone number changes during a call (e.g. because the call was redirected from the main switchboard), the new phone number will be updated by default in the Desktop Notification. The update can be suppressed by checking this option.

## **Controlling CTI Application**

If a application uses the windows dialer, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can be configured to handle all requests that go to the windows dialer. This allows to use the call logic for outgoing calls of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

## Activate call logging

This configuration is intended for service purposes. It logs the events of the TAPI device driver. See Troubleshooting - sending a log file how to send a log file 1991 to support.

### See also

Where do I find this screen?

### 6.4.2 Help and Welcome

The following settings allow for configuring help options.

PI Configuration	Help and Welcor	me Development A	API Miscellaneou	s Settings
Help Type:	Online-Help			
<ul> <li>Display Quid</li> </ul>	Introduction Help			

## Help Type

2 different types of help is offered

- Online Help this is the most up-to-date help (updated even after program release). It is recommended using this help
- Offline Help this help program is stored on the local hard disk drive and can be used, if no Internet connection is available

The offline help works with Windows XP SP2 / Vista only with a single user installation

# **Display Quick Introduction Help**

Check this option to have the Welcome Screen 20 displayed during each program start.

#### See also

Where do I find this screen? [58]

### 6.4.3 Development API

These settings have an impact on the development API using the calls.xml and jobs.xml file to handle phone events.

API Configuration	Help and Welcome	Development API	Miscellane	ous Settings
Always write X	(ML file (calls.xml)			
XML Character Se	t:			
Create calls.xr	ml only once per call			
<ul> <li>Signal change</li> </ul>	in phone number			
Timeout during init	tializing a call transfe	r:		5

## Always write XML file (calls.xml)

The default option specifies that a call is passed to an external program only after clicking

on the Desktop Notification window. This option allows to always pass the caller data via the calls.xml file independently from clicking on the Desktop Notification.

## **XML Character Set**

The character set for the calls.xml and jobs.xml file can be changed. This is necessary in order to pass caller data stored with different character set. Default is UTF-8.

### Example

The address data is stored in the database with Greek characters. In order to pass the address data it is necessary to change the default character set.

The character set of the Desktop Notification cannot be changed.

### Create calls.xml only once per call

If checked, the calls.xml will be created only once per call. Otherwise the file will be created for each TAPI event like ring, hold, terminate, provided that the user clicks **once** on the Desktop Notification. See also: Always write XML file (calls.xml) [64].

# Signal change in phone number

Using this option will signal in the calls.xml file, if the phone number has changed **during a call**. This event can happen when a call is redirected. See also: Don't signal updated phone number during a call **62** 

## Timeout during initializing a call transfer

This switch is used for the option Transfer a Call 43. It is the waiting time in seconds until the PBX responds to the event. The default value is 5 seconds, maximum is 60 seconds.

### See also

Where do I find this screen? [58]

66

CTI Data Connector 4.0

### 6.4.4 Miscellaneous Settings

Network Setup: Local Version: Network Version: Maximum version number within network:				TAPI Configuration
Maximum version number within network:			ocal Version:	Network Setup: Lo
Terminate database connection after each call				
Number of entries in Coll ( listers) and Dadisline Lists		hin network:	laximum version numb	M
Number of entries in Call History and Redialing List:		n call	abase connection afte	Terminate data
	500	List:	in Call History and Re	Number of entries
Application to dial with Hyperlink: dial.exe		dial.exe	with Hyperlink:	Application to dial

## Terminate database connection after each call

If an Access database is used in an network environment and not all PCs shut down CTI Data Connector for Salesforce during night, this database can never be backed up because it is always in use. Use this option to allow for back-up or compression of an database.

Depending on the usage of the database this option may significantly slow down the performance.

Never use this option on the server and never in combination with an SQL database.

## Number of entries in Call History and Redialing list

Define the number of entries in the call history list.

## Application to dial with Hyperlink

Defines the executable which is used by Windows **callto:** command - see <u>Dial with a</u> <u>Hyperlink</u> 201.

This command may be used by other applications like Skype. If CTI Data Connector for Salesforce should use this functionality, disable in Skype: callto: links in other applications. The default value for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is **dial.exe**.

### See also

Where do I find this screen? 58

CTI Data Connector 4.0

68

# 6.5 Configuration of the PBX and Caller Identification

This screen allows to specify <u>PBX specific settings</u> [69] and how to handle <u>caller</u> identification [73].

3X Configuratio		aller Identification		al
	for external calls:	dicating an external c	-11.	9
				3
Dialing	Rules			

### See also

PBX Configuration69Dialing Rules70Dialing Rules for US / Canada71Configuration Caller Identification73

© 2012 Mirage Computer Systems GmbH

## 6.5.1 PBX Configuration

Basic Configuration settings for handling outgoing calls and PBX specific functions.

BX Configuration	Configuration Call	er Identification		
Dial tone digits for				9
Minimum length of	phone number indi	cating an externa	al call:	3

## **Dial tone digits for external calls**

Specify the digit which is necessary to get an outside line for external calls, e.g. 0 or 9. This prefix is added automatically for external calls. Also see <u>dialing Rules</u> for extended configuration.

### Minimum length of phone number indication an external call

For distinguishing between internal and external calls type in the maximum length of the internal phone number + 1 (Example: The internal phone numbers are 0 to 99; an external number would be defined by using 3 digits).

#### See also

Dialing Rules 70 Dialing Rules for US / Canada 71

#### 6.5.1.1 Dialing Rules

With the button *dialing Rules* the country settings and area code settings can be modified. It is important to configure the correct **area code and country** code.

Phone and Modem Options	8 23
Dialing Rules Modems Advanced	
The list below displays the loc location from which you are di	ations you have specified. Select the aling.
Locations:	
Location	Area Code
<ul> <li>My Location</li> </ul>	425
New	Edt Delete
ОК	Cancel Apply

Outside US / Canada it is sufficient to add the country/ region and the area code **without the leading 0**. Never add a dialing rule because rules like prefixes are covered within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce settings.

#### Example

Area Code: 425- never use 0425 for area code as 0 is part of the dialing rule which is

automatically retrieved from the country settings.

For **US / Canada** see special considerations for <u>dialing rules</u> 71.

**Outside** US / Canada: Press the button *Edit:* Select your **Country/Region** and Area Code without the leading 0 or 1. The fields Outside Line for local calls, long-distance calls, carrier code for long-distance calls and international calls **must be empty**.

New Location	8 X
General Area Code Rules Calling Card	
Location name:	
Specify the location from which you will be dialing.	
Country/region: A	vea code:
United States 👻	425
Dialing rules	
When dialing from this location, use the following rules:	
To access an outside line for local calls, dial:	
To access an outside line for long-distance calls, dial:	
Use this carrier code to make long-distance calls:	
Use this carrier code to make international calls:	
To disable call waiting, dial:	v
Dial using:    Tone    Pulse	
L	
OK Cancel	Apply

### See also

Where do I find this screen?

#### 6.5.1.2 Dialing Rules for US / Canada

As there are different dialing rules for local and long distance calls in the USA, these rules have to be defined only within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce **and NOT** in the Windows dialing rules.

Configuration within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Set Dial tone digits for external calls and to 9

### **Configuration within Windows**

Press the button *dialing Rules*, or within Windows select Open Phone and Modem Options by clicking the **Start** button, clicking **Control Panel** and then clicking **Phone and Modem Options**.

#### TAB - General

Configure: Area code: 425; leave outside line empty

New L cation	8 ×
General Area Code Rules Calling Card	
Location name:	
Specify the location from which you will be dialing.	
Country/region:	Area code:
United States 👻	425
Dialing rules	
When dialing from this location, use the following rules:	
To access an outside line for local calls, dial:	
To access an outside line for long-distance calls, dial:	
Use this carrier code to make long-distance calls:	
-	
Use this carrier code to make international calls:	
To disable call waiting, dial:	v
Dial using: () Tone () Pulse	
the second se	
OK Cancel	Apply

#### TAB - Area Code rules

In some places, some prefixes within an area code are considered local calls, and other prefixes within the same area code are considered long distance. Use this tab to specify those relationships and the rules for dialing those numbers.

In the New Area Code Rule dialog box, specify how certain phone numbers in the same or other area codes need to be dialed. Include all the prefixes to be used for this area code.

- · Leave the field Dial empty
- Check: Include the area code.
CTI Data Connector for Salesforce supports the dialing rules only if activated in the <u>PBX</u> configuration screen.

### See also

Where do I find this screen?

## 6.5.2 Configuration Caller Identification

PBX Configuration	Configuration Caller Identification	1	
	n - truncate number of digits:		3
	database search in the defined seq ating a digit restart search in all dat		
Don't show int	ernal calls		
Use Called ID	for caller identification		
Suppress multi	ple hits due to identical phone num	nbers	
Display Caller 1	D Name identified by PBX		
String if Calle	r ID is suppressed:		
Display Phone Nur	nber:		
💿 Dispay nu	mber sent by TAPI-driver without ar	ny change	

## Caller identification - truncate number of digits

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can truncate a phone number until a phone number

with a direct match is found.

#### Example

Incoming number: 0044734273**833**. This number is not associated with a contact person, but the number of the main office with 0044734273-0 is stored. After 3 digits having been truncated, the number of the main office will be found. If this logic is not needed, type in 0. The default value is 3.

#### US or Canada

This option must be 0 because extensions can not be dialled directly.

#### **Options**

- Complete database search in the defined sequence. If the phone number is NOT found then the phone number is truncated and the search is done again in the **same** database. If after truncating of the digits no caller ID is found, then the next database is used to search for the phone number
- After truncating a digit restart search in all databases. If the phone number is NOT found, the phone number is searched in the **next** database. After searching in all databases the phone number is truncated and the search starts with database 1 again

This option is not used for salesforce

## Don't show internal calls

If selected, the caller information for **internal calls will not be displayed**. For distinguishing between internal and external calls, the value in the field <u>Minimum length of phone number indicating an external call</u> <sup>70</sup> will be used.

## **Use Called ID for caller identification**

By default, the phone number of the person who is calling (CallerID) is used for caller identification. If the number that was called (Called ID) is to be used, select this option.

### Example

You provide a phone service for 10 companies and you offer a line for each company. Whenever a phone comes in, the number that was called (line for company 1 to 10) including the company name is to be displayed.

## Suppress multiple hits due to identical phone numbers

If records are stored multiple times (the same phone number is stored multiple times), CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will always display multiple addresses and cannot open a caller record or Outlook contact. If the option *Suppress multiple hits due to identical phone numbers* is selected, always only one suitable record will be displayed.

This option is not used for salesforce

# **Display Caller ID identified by PBX**

If your PBX has an own phone directory, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can display the name of the caller in the Desktop Notification passed by the PBX, if no address is found in a database or Outlook.

The option: *String if caller ID is suppressed* should be the character string which is sent by the PBX for suppressed caller IDs, e.g. \*\*\*. Instead of displaying \*\*\* the Desktop Notification is not displayed.

Ihis option is not used for salesforce

# **Display Phone Number**

Defines the format how the phone number is displayed in the call history or in the desktop notification

- *Display number sent by TAPI driver without any change*. The phone number is formatted like in the display of the telephone set (depending on the TAPI driver) e.g. 214.415.9160
- *Display number in international format.* The phone number is displayed in the international format 0012144159160

### See also

Where do I find this screen?



# 7 Service Programmes

## 7.1 Show License Information

To display the license information, either

• right click on the icon in the taskbar 23 - select Show License Information

or

• select within the Control Centre 25, Menu Extras, Show License Information

This will open the Licence Viewer where you can view the licenses you have acquired, the number of users/computers who can use the licence and whether a licence has a time limitation or not.

## **Number of licenses**

The folder **CTI License** displays the maximum number of licenses and the number of licenses which are available. If you click on the + sign, all computers using a license will be displayed. See <u>Deactivate a License</u> how to deactivate one single computer.

- Number of Computers / PCs which have a license
- Demoversion 164 if omitted it is a full version or time-limited full version
- Valid until (time limitation) if omitted it is a non time-limited version
- Web Activation 134 either done or required

# **Update Subscription**

The update subscription entitles you to install the latest updates as long as it has not expired. See chapter software update about how to download updates.

- Available / Not available
- Time limitation the date when the update subscription expires

## **Release Number**

• Internal release information

🖺 License Viewer	- • ×
Manufacturer:	
Company: Smart Business Inc	
😟 🧑 Installation Codes - Copy protection activated(2)	
Modules	
G	
- Activation Keys	
TI Client Interface (available)	
Webdial (available)	
Release (24000)	
±	
1	
Deactivate         Activation Key         Refresh         Info         Options	Close

# 7.2 Apply Activation Key

An Activation Key is used to modify the license information (e.g. increase number of licenses). All Activation Keys are unique and have the same format like:

#### fZDdq-aDC95-e54DA-atR82-DL82k-NfC4v

There are 6 blocks each with 5 characters. The blocks are separated by a hyphen for better readability.

If you got an Activation Key via E-Mail or Fax, you can enter the key within the screen <u>Show License Information</u> 77.

- Start screen Show License Information 77
- Select button Activation Key
- Paste the key from the clipboard with CTRL+V

It is possible to validate the Activation Key online. In this case an Internet connection is necessary.

🖺 License Viewer	
Manufacturer: Company: Smart Business Inc Modules CTI License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done)) Activation Keys MIRAGE-02-01 CTI Clent Interface (available) Number of Database Profiles (4) XML Interface (available) Webdial (available) Update Subscription (available, Release (24000) CYS System QK Cancel	
Deactivate Activation Key Refresh Info Opti	<u>C</u> lose

## 7.3 Formatting of Phone Numbers

As the phone numbers stored in different formats in the enterprise databases cannot be used for the caller identification, they have to be converted cyclically into an international format.

This program normally runs on the server 1 or 2 times a day and formats all phone numbers of all enterprise databases (profile databases). See <u>Server Setup</u>.

The local database (Quick dialing list and contact data from Microsoft Outlook<sup>TM</sup>) and also the main database in a single user environment has to be formatted on the local PC. This is automatically done once a day after <%oemtitle%> has been started, if the option *Refresh daily* is selected. During the formatting of the phone numbers you can make calls, but the caller identification will not be active.

Start the program for formatting the phone numbers by clicking on the icon in the taskbar with the right mouse button and select the option *Format phone numbers* or by selecting the menu Extras - *Format phone numbers* in the control centre 24.

Depending on the installation some options might be disabled.



urrent Local: 2/22/2011 7:02:47 PM - Global: 2/22/2011 5:04:02 PM					
Options Local database					
<ul> <li>Profile database(s)</li> </ul>					
Refresh daily					

If you do not want to run the program every day, deselect *Refresh daily* and run the program from time to time by pressing the button *Start*.

A single user installation does not support formatting phone numbers on the server, and all databases will have to be formatted locally.

## 7.4 Format Phone Numbers on the Server

#### This step has to be done on the server

A Server Setup is necessary to <u>format</u> <sup>79</sup> the phone numbers of enterprise databases. When using Microsoft Outlook<sup>™</sup> the formatting is done on the local PC.

The CTI Data Connector for Salesforce component has to be installed on the server with

the program **SetupServer.exe**. Start the program setupserver.exe on the **server** (never on the workstation). This installs all necessary components and creates a program group *CTI Data Connector for Salesforce* with the entry **CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Format Phone Numbers**. Start this program to format the phone numbers manually in order to check if it is working.

You can start a cyclical formatting of phone numbers on the server. We recommend doing this during the night. Ideally you use the Task manager of the server operating system (Control Panel, Scheduled Tasks). To start the task use the following command:

#### cdcsfeSTARTER.EXE -R

Alternatively you can use the timer function of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. The applications will reside in the memory of the server, while the memory is freed, if the windows task manager is used.

## **Possible Parameters**

-R: The program starts, formats the phone numbers and terminates
-Thh:mm: Starts as a "Server". The phone numbers are formatted at the specified time (e.g.: -T08:00 = 8 o'clock)
-Mn: Starts as a "Server". The phone numbers are formatted after the specified time interval (e.g.: M180 = 180 minutes)

#### See also

Network Installation - general information

## 7.5 Error Protocol

In case of failing to access a database an error protocol will be written. You can display it by clicking on the icon in the <u>taskbar</u> 23 with the right mouse button and selecting the option **Error protocol** or selecting the menu **Extras - error protocol** in the <u>control centre</u> 24.

The error protocol will be deleted with every start of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

There is a log file for error tracking with the TAPI device driver - see configuration settings  $\boxed{62}$ .

### 7.6 Phone Simulator

If you have no TAPI-enabled phone available and you want to test CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, you can use the simulator which works like a regular telephone.

### **Activating the Simulator**

Start the <u>Configuration Wizard</u> and choose the page where you can select your <u>telephony service provider</u> s. Choose **<Telephone Simulator>**. When you start CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, the simulator will be started automatically.

## Working with the Simulator

The telephone simulator acts like a normal telephone with which you can make outgoing calls and accept incoming calls.



## Simulating an incoming call

- Type in a phone number (without country code and special characters) in the display. You can alternatively use the keyboard to type in the number.
- Press the button Dial
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce performs the caller identification and signals the incoming call
- Accept the incoming call by pressing the button Pick up
- You can disconnect the call by pressing the button Hang up

## Simulating an outgoing call

- Search in the phone book of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce for an address or a contact person and dial by double-clicking on the phone number. You can dial alternatively by <u>highlighting a phone number</u> [34] and pressing the configured <u>Hotkey</u> [56].
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce displays the dialled address
- Establish the call by pressing the button **Pick up**

• You can disconnect the call by pressing the button **Hang up** 



# 8 Installation

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce supports single user and network installation to a centralized handling of the configuration settings, updates and license information.

A network installation is recommended with more then 3 PCs.

- Single User Installation 86
- <u>Network Installation</u>
- Activate Product 134
- Installation FAQ

# 8.1 Browser Support

## **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

### Minimum system requirements

- IE8 +
- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like

- IE9
- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

## Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content

#### CTI Data Connector 4.0

86

## 8.2 Single User Installation

The installation consists of 5 steps:

- Install call center adapter 874.0
- Install the application on the local PC 100
- Minimum Configuration Settings 22
- Browser Support 85
- Check SoftPhone 102
- Activate Product 134



Each PC needs a Serial Number 137 to activate the software

By default, the icon is not visible on Vista and Windows 7 in the notification area. To show





This will open the Notification Area lcons control panel item. Select the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and in the pick list select: **Show icon and notification**.

CTI CTI Connector - Office Edition - 0 Ruf(e)
---

Additionally add the red salesforce icon

### 8.2.1 Install Call Center Adapter

To install and activate the call center adapter the following steps are necessary.

### 1. System Requirements regarding Salesforce

To use the Call Center Adapter, the *Professional, Enterprise, Developer* or *Unlimited Edition* is required.

If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

Important change in Version 4 - **.NET Framework 3.5 is required.** It is installed automatically if missing.

System Requirements regarding PBX and operating system (it is imperative to check before installation)

## **Telephone System**

To communicate with a phone system, either a CTI server (Third Party Solution) or the connection of the phone set to the PC (First Party Solution) is supported. For both systems a **TAPI driver 2.x (also referred to as TSP)** is mandatory. See details for TAPI - Where do I find the TAPI driver?

- VOIP systems like Cisco Call Manager, Avaya, Swyx or Innovaphone normally have a TAPI driver included.
- For Asterisk there are several vendors who offer a TAPI driver e.g. <u>http://</u>www.xtelsio.com or http://activa.sourceforge.net.
- If your VOIP / Cloud PBX system does not comes with a TAPI driver, try Global IP Telecommunications Ltd (Ninja Pro) <u>www.globalipphones.com</u>. This software works with all SIP compatible phone systems.
- Traditional PBX systems like Siemens or Alcatel often require an additional TAPI server.
- ISDN phones without a PBX are available with an inbuilt TAPI driver.
- If you are using a modem, we strongly recommend switching to a phone set connected to the PC (via USB/serial), because the TAPI drivers of modems often do offer only basic functions or do not function at all.

Please check firstly with your phone vendor about which solution meets your requirements and how you can install and configure the TAPI driver. You can contact Support@mirage-systems.de if you do have the TAPI driver installed and CTI Data Connector for Salesforce has problems with making an outgoing call or receiving incoming calls.

Some TAPI drivers do not work on **64bit operating** systems. You can use a virtual machine with 32bit operating system. An example, how this is working is explained for MAC OS X. [161] For Windows Vista or Windows 7 64bit, the same virtual machines can

be used.

## **Operating System**

Windows XP SP3 to Windows 7 (32bit and 64 bit) is supported

• .NET 3.5 is required for the salesforce call center adapter 4

### **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

#### Minimum system requirements

- IE8 +
- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like

- IE9
- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

### Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content [154].

## Salesforce

The Salesforce Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited or Developer Edition is required for

the call center functionality. If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

### See also

Configure 54 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Where do I find the TAPI driver?

## 2. Download the adapter 4.0 configuration file

Download the adapter (right mouse click, save target as) and save it on your hard disk. There is a special <u>USA / Canada</u> and <u>German</u> adapter version. For all other countries use the generic <u>adapter.xml</u>

## 3. Add the configuration file to salesforce

Select: Setup > AppSetup > Customize > Call Center > Call Centers

Click on the button: Import an select the file adapter.xml on your local hard disk

Home	Campaigns	Leads	Accounts	Contacts	Console	Cases	Reports	Dashboards	Solutions	Roadmaps	Releases	Contracts
Person	al Setup		Call (	Center	Import							
My Pe	ersonal Informat	ion	T	<b>5</b>							b VMI	1.5.1
Email Impor								at was just insta prise7x.xml"). <u>Vi</u>			auit Aivil Call	center definitior
	op Integration									Import Can	el.	
Call C	enter Settings									Can		
			New C	all Center I	nport Infor	mation						
App Se	tup				Call Cen	ter Definition	File dc	\sf\3.0\files\Adap	ter.xml Bro	wse		
Custo	mize											
🕨 Ta	b Names and La	bels								Imment Can		
🕨 Ho	me									Import Cano	cer	
► Ac	tivities											
🕨 Ca	mpaigns											
▶ Le	ads											
					Brows	er for a	dapte	er.xml				

CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter 4.0 will be added to the call center list

Home Campaigns Leads	Accounts	Contacts	Console	Cases	Reports	Dashboards	Solutions	Roadmaps	Releases	Contracts	DupeCatcher Duplicate Alerts	+
Expand Al   Collapse Al	All Call Centers											
	A call cente	er correspor	nds to a sing	le comput	er-telephon	y integration (C1	<ol> <li>system alre</li> </ol>	eady in place at	your organiza	ation. Salesfo	rce.com users must be assigned t	o a call center before they can use any Call Center fe
Force.com Home											Import	
System Overview New!	Action	Name 1										Version Created Date
System Overview New	Edit   Del	CTI Data C	onnector - C	all Center /	Adapter Vers	sion 4						4,000 13.05.2012 17:33
Personal Setun												

call center list

## 4. Configure the call center adapter

Click on the call center adapter.

#### Note

If you make any **changes of the configuration settings** you have to logout in salesforce, right click on the blue CTI Data Connector icon and select: *Reload Salesforce Configuration* 

#### Port

The Salesforce SoftPhone is a web application, which uses the port 11000. If this port is used by another application contact Support@mirage-systems.de.

#### **Dialing Options**

The *dialing options* configuration depends on the PBX and on the country your are located.

Additional Connector - Call Center Adapter Vension 4 all of Cenner Vensioner - Inf Cener Angeler Vension 4 Center Manager - Call Cener Angeler Vension 4 Recent Vensioner - Call Cener Angeler Vension 4 Recent Vension 4 Recent Vensioner - Recent Vension 4 Recent Vension 4 Recen	CTI Data Connector - Call Cer			
Dialing Options Outside Partix 5 Long Distance Partix 1 International Partix (51)	Call Center Detail	Edit Delete Clone		
Configure call cent	General Information			
for USA	Internal Name	CDCSFE40		
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 4		
	Description	Integration in salesforce call center adapter for CTI Data Connector		
	CTI Connector Progld	CDCSFEAdapter.CDCSFEAdapter.400		
	Version	4.0		
	Config Version	4.0.0		
	CTI Adapter URL	http://localhost:11000		
	Dialing Options			
	Outside Prefix	0		
	Long Distance Prefix	0		
	International Prefix	00		
	Country Code	49		

Configure call center for Europe or other countries

- Outside Prefix (number to access an outside line) e.g. in US 91 407-398-6913 or in Europe it is often 0 031976354
- Long Distance Prefix Carrier Code to make a long distance call e.g in US **1** 407-398-6913, in Europe it is often **0** e.g. **0**31976354
- International Prefix Carrier Code to make an international call e.g. in US 011497525529339 to make a call to Germany, in Europe it is often 00 e.g. 00497525529339
- Country Code Country code of your country e.g US is 1, Germany 49. Click here for a list of all country codes



You have to use an <u>own adapter state</u> for each country where you have call center users.

### Save call as a task

Each call (incoming and outgoing) can be **automatically saved** as a task / activity including the **call duration** and a **phone note**.

Save call as a task					
Subject of the task	{calltype} {time}				
Autosave incoming calls (Y/N)	Υ				
Autosave outgoing calls (Y/N)	Y				
Autosave unsuccessful calls (Y/N)	Y				

• Subject of the task - configure the subject line. Either use a text like CALL or one of the following variables

{calltype} - inserts either Incoming Call or Outgoing Call
{time} - inserts the time
{date} - inserts the current date

Activity H	Activity History					
Action	Subject					
Edit   Del	Incoming Call 8:08 PM					

- Autosave incoming calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an incoming call should be automatically saved. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved
- Autosave outgoing calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an outgoing call should be automatically saved. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved
- Autosave unsuccessful calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an unsuccessful call = call duration with 0 seconds should be stored. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved

### Call-Wrap-Up

To rate a phone call, you can activate the Call Wrap Up feature, which is displayed at the end of the phone call in the <u>SoftPhone</u> 42.

Details how to configure it 94

#### **Expert Settings**

Changes are only necessary in case there are problems with the adapter.

Details how to configure it 97

### 5. Add users to the call center

Now click on the button: Manage Call Center Users



add call center users

Add the users who should use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce



If the user is not listed, he is probably assigned to another call center adapter. You have to remove the user from this adapter because one user cannot be assigned to multiple adapters at the same time.

## 6. Configure Softphone Layout

#### **General Settings**

The salesforce administrator can configure the user interface of the SoftPhone with the menu option: <u>Softphone-Layouts</u> [97]. It allows you e.g. to define which fields should appear on the SoftPhone or general settings for the display of the call.The settings are valid for **all users**.

Not all functions, which can be configured here, are supported by CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

#### User specific settings

Each user can configure **Personal** settings: Setup > Personal Setup > Call Center Settings > My Softphone Settings

# 7. Configure Task Page layout

All phone calls are saved as a task. To make some special phone fields like call duration accessible for the user, they can be added to the task page layout. Select: Setup > Customize > Activities > **Task Page Layouts**.

Add the fields:

- Call Type
- Call Result
- Call Duration

ghlights Panel							
Customize the highlights	s panel for this page layout						
Fask Detail		Edit Delete	s Delete Series	Create Follow Up Tas	Create Fol	low Up Event	Custom Buttons
Task Information (Head	ler visible on edit only)						
\star 🍳 Assigned To	Sample User				\star 🔍 Status	Sample Stat	us
\star 🔍 Subject	Sample Subject				Name	Sample Con	itact
Due Date	18.06.2011 15:01				Related To	Sample Con	tract
🗎 Phone	1-415-555-1212				🔒 Email	sarah.samp	le@company.com
\star 🔍 Priority	Sample Priority						
Phone Call							N
🔒 Call Type	Sample Call Type			<b>a</b>	Call Duration	7.159	5
Call Result	Sample Call Result						

# Troubleshooting

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content [154].

For all other errors browse the chapter: Error - Call Center Adapter

Salesforce offers a web page with comprehensive information and <u>questions and</u> <u>answers</u>



For more information about the salesforce *call center adapter* search in the salesforce online help using the search term: **call center adapter overview** 

The integration in salesforce requires one of the following salesforce editions: *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* oder *Developer Edition.* 

#### 8.2.1.1 Install Multiple Call Center Adapters

If you want to have **different options depending on user groups** (e.g. sales and support or you have locations in different countries), you can install multiple Call Center Adapters.

The same applies to languages. The standard fields are automatically displayed in the user language. If you need to translate the **custom fields**, e.g. in the <u>Call Wrap Up and</u>, just make an own adapter for each language.

#### **Rename the adapter**

Click on edit and rename the fields: Internal Name and Display Name.

Call Center Detail		Edit Delete Clone
General Information		
	Internal Name	CDCSFESales
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 3 - Sales
	Description	Integration in salesforce call center adapter for CTI Data Co

#### Import a new adapter

Import a new adapter [89] and make different settings.

#### 8.2.1.2 Call Wrap Up / Call Results

To rate a phone call, you can activate the Call Wrap Up feature, which is displayed at the end of the phone call in the SoftPhone 42.

The options, which are available to rate a phone call or add a call result, can be defined with Label 1 to 10.

95

Call Wrap Up	
Call Wrap Up Enabled (Y/N)	Y
Label 1	Got Voicemail
Value for report 1	Voicemail
Label 2	Busy in Meeting or on the phone
Value for report 2	Meeting / Phone
Label 3	Away from his desk
Value for report 3	Away
Label 4	Decision < 1 week
Value for report 4	Immediate Decision
Label 5	Decision 1 < 1 month
Value for report 5	Decision 1m
Label 6	Decision < 2 months
Value for report 6	Decision 2m
Label 7	Decision >2 months
Value for report 7	Decision >2m
Label 8	Left Voicemail
Value for report 8	Left Voicemail
Label 9	Out of Office
Value for report 9	Out of Office
Label 10	No interest
Value for report 10	No interest

This is how it will appear on the softphone.

### 96 CTI Data Connector 4.0



The selected item is saved with the note as an **activity** using the text, which is defined as: **value for report.** You can either use the same text for the report as the label or use another value.

Example:

Label: Send Quote - Value for Report: Send Quote. The text Send Quote is saved for the report.

Label: Send Quote - Value for Report: *CODE-SQ*. The text *CODE-SQ* is saved for the report.

A different value for the report e.g. makes sense, if you configure adapters in different languages but you want to have the same result text in the report.

See also: <u>Reports</u> 48



If you want to update fields depending on a phone call, create a workflow within salesforce and use the 3 call specific fields (*Call Type, Call Result, Call Duration*) described in <u>step 6</u> step 1 to trigger the workflow.

If you want to have **different options depending on user groups** (e.g. sales and support or you have locations in different countries) you can install multiple <u>Call Center</u> <u>Adapters</u> [94].

# **Activity History**

A good idea is to add the call wrap up code in the activity history view. One glimpse and you are informed about the result of the last call.

Activity History		Log A	Call Mail Merge Send An Email	Request Update View All		
Action	Subject	Related To	Task	Due Date	Call Result	
Edit   Del	Outgoing Call		✓	19.07.2012	Voicemail	
Edit   Del	Outgoing Call		✓	19.07.2012	Meeting / Phone	
Edit   Del	Incoming Call		$\checkmark$	18.07.2012	Decision 1m	

#### 8.2.1.3 Expert Settings

Changes are only necessary in case there are problems with the adapter.

#### Polling interval in salesforce adapter

Change this value if you get calls signaled in the SoftPhone with a large delay. The smaller this value, the faster events are handled within the SoftPhone.

#### **Timeout for http requests**

In case the SoftPhone does not react after some time and this happens frequently, then change this value to 50.000 to 1000.000

Expert Setting
Polling interval in salesforce adapter (10-2000
ms) - Default = 500:
Timeout for http requests: 900000

#### 8.2.1.4 Softphone Layout

### **Configure Layout**

You can define, which fields should be displayed on the SoftPhone. This definition can be

#### 98 CTI Data Connector 4.0

done with different settings for internal, inbound and outbound calls. You can not only display the name of the caller but also information like VIP status, turnover, service level agreement, language or other information.

Select: Setup > AppSetup > Customize > Call Center > SoftPhone Layouts

#### Cases

If you want to work with cases and assign a call to a case, you have to add the **Case** object for **incoming** and **outgoing** calls in the SoftPhone Layout.

Personal Setup	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
My Personal Information	Select Call Type Outbound	d 💌
Email	Softphone Layout	Help about this section (
Import	Solutione Layout	Help about this section i
Desktop Integration	Display these call-related fields:	
Call Center Settings	Dialed Number, Caller ID	Edit
App Setup		
	Display these salesforce.com objects:	
Customize	Contact, Account, Lead	Add / Remove Objects
Tab Names and Labels		
► Home	If single Contact found, display: Name, Title	Edit
Activities	If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.	
Campaigns	If single Account found, display: Account Name, Type, Account Number	Edit
Leads	If multiple matches found, only Account Name is displayed.	
Accounts	If single Lead found, display: Name, Company, Title, Lead Source, Country	Edit
Contacts	If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.	Luit
Opportunities		
Quotes     Forecasts (Customizable)		
Cases		
Entitlement Management		
Self-Service		
Call Center		
Call Centers		
Directory Numbers		

#### Configure Cases - Step 1

Click on: *Add / Remove Objects* and select the **Case** object. Then ensure that the **Case Number** is displayed in the SoftPhone.

99

#### Display these salesforce.com objects:

Contact, Account, Lead, Case, Task

- If single Contact found, display: Name, Department, Title, Languages, Assistant If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.
- If single Account found, display: Account Name, Type, Account Number, SLA If multiple matches found, only Account Name is displayed.
- If single Lead found, display: Name, Company, Title, Lead Source If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.
- ▼ If single Case found, display: Case Number, Status, Priority



#### Configure Cases - Step 2

#### **Internal Calls**

To configure internal calls, you have to define the length of internal phone numbers in the configuration wizard 69

Within the SoftPhone Layout, select the call type: Internal

The next step is to assign the object, which should be used for the search. Select: User

The search within users will work for the fields Phone and Extension, but not for the field Mobile. Although it is possible to search in contacts, the search will provide wrong results - e.g. extension 212 calls and this would find an address with the phone number 212.827.1991

The calls are saved as an activity with the call type: Internal Call

#### SoftPhone Layout Edit

		Save Cancel		
Name	Standard SoftPhone Lay	🖌 Is Default Layout		
			Select Call Type Internal 🔽	
phone Layout				Help about this sectio
splay these call-related fields: Caller ID, Dialed Number splay these salesforce.com objects:				Edit
Voer     Available     abc     Account     Adapter     BNS Contact History     Canapaign     Case     Contact     Data     Data     Data     DupeCatcher Filter     DupeCatcher Filter     DupeCatcher Filter     DupeCatcher Filter     DupeCatcher Potential Duplicate     DupeCatc	Add Up			Collapse

Configure internal calls

# 8.2.2 Install the application on the local PC

You can select during the installation whether you want to install a Single User or Multi User system. Select **Single User System**.

🔏 Single - / Multi User System 🛛 🔀
Choose the installation type
Choose, how you want to install CTI:
<ul> <li>Single User System</li> <li>Multi User System</li> </ul>
By selecting Multi User System, all files are copied to a file server and you can install multiple Clients afterwards. You have to install a task on the server to format phone numbers if you are using a database (not Outlook) in combination with CTI Use SETUPSERVER to install the task.
By selecting Single User System, the files could be on the local PC or on a server. The preparation of the phone numbers is always local.
< <u>B</u> ack Cancel

### **Necessary Rights**

During installation DLLs are registered. The user who installs the application needs a right to register DLLs.

The user who runs the application needs the following rights on the installation folder:

- Files cdcsfe.xml and cdcsfe.lic: read and write access
- All other files: read access

### See also

Single User Installation - general information 86

### 8.2.3 Minimum Configuration Settings

During installation, the <u>Configuration Wizard</u> was already started. You can define a lot of individual configuration settings there. The following settings **have to be defined** to guarantee a basic functionality.

- <u>TAPI device driver</u> [54] it is delivered by the telephone manufacturer. See also: <u>System</u> requirements <u>TAPI driver</u> [148]. If you don't have a TAPI driver yet, you can use the <u>Telephone Simulator</u> [27] for testing.
- Button <u>Dialing Rules</u> 70 configures country settings and area code. See also special configuration for US / Canada 71

Just by setting this minimum configuration you will be able to make outgoing calls and to identify incoming calls. The Configuration Wizard can be started any time by **right** click on the icon 23, option Configuration Wizard 51.

102	CTI Data Connector 4.0	
6	<ul> <li>CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Configuration Wizard</li> </ul>	×
	Here you can configure CTI Data Connector for Salesforce to obtain a basic functionality for incoming calls. After the installation, individual settings can be done with the Configuration Wizard. Choose the button Help to learn more about the configuration settings.	r
=	Telephony service provider/TAPI device driver:	
	Dialing Rules	
	Help     Cancel     < Back	
	See also	
	Nhere do I find the TAPI driver?	

### 8.2.4 Check SoftPhone

After login in Salesforce you should see the Salesforce SoftPhone at the left upper corner of the browser. The SoftPhone is only available on the **main screens** like Home, Lead, Account, Contact or Cases but not in screens like Setup.



Using the <u>service cloud</u> [45], the SoftPhone appears at the bottom right corner.

Account:	5					
All Account	s 💌	Edit   Delete   Create N	ew View			🖨 🍯
New Account	0		AB	С   D   E   F   G   H   I   J   К	L M N O P Q R S T	「   U   V   W   X   Y   Z   Other Al
Action	Account Name ↑	Account Site	Billing State/Province	Phone	Туре	Owner Alias
Edit   Del	Burlington Textiles Corp of		NC	(336) 222-7000 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	Dickenson plc		KS	+1(785) 241-6200 🍾	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	Die Idee GmbH			089/1250-0 %	Prospect	MI
Edit   Del	Edge Communications		TX	+1(512) 757-6000 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
📕 Edit   Del	Express Logistics and Tran		OR	(503) 421-7800 🍾	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	Firma 1			075256991		MI
Edit   Del	GenePoint		CA	(650) 867-3450 🍾	Customer - Channel	Ш
Edit   Del	Grand Hotels & Resorts Ltd		L	<u>(312) 596-1000</u> 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	International Ltd		United Kingdom	00442073330033 %		MI
Edit   Del	Mirage Computer Systems			07525529339		MI
Edit   Del	Pyramid Construction Inc.			(014) 427-4427 🍾	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	sForce		CA	(415) 901-7000 %		MI
Edit   Del	SR Test					MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas Corp.		NY	+1(212) 842-5500 %	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas, Singapore		Singapore	<u>(650) 450-8810</u> 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas, UK		UK	+44 191 4956203 🍾	Customer - Direct	М
Edit   Del	United Whiskey Destilleries		SL44QQ	+44734273833	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	University of Arizona		AZ	<u>(520) 773-9050 🍾</u>	Customer - Direct	М
-18 of 18 🔻	0 Selected 💌		∢  Previous	≪I ◄ Previous Next ► ►		

Service Cloud Console - Main Screen

# **Internet Explorer**

If you are running Internet Explorer you probably receive the following warning

Do you want to view only the web content that was delivered securely? (Warning mixed content)

104 CTI Data Connector 4.0

Security	Warning	And Manhage Streaments	×
	Do you want to view only the securely?	webpage content that was de	elivered
	This webpage contains content that connection, which could compromise		
	ore Info	Yes	No

The warning can be disabled using the following steps:

Go to Tools -> Internet Options -> Security -> Local Intranet



- Click "Custom Level"
- Select "Enable" for "Display mixed content"

urity Setting Settings	s - Local II	ntranet Zo	ne	-	-	
	Disable Enable Prompt ow website Disable Enable Disable Enable Enable	es to use n s to open v content				
	Disable Enable	for client co			ien no cer	tificat +
*Takes effe Reset custom Reset to:	settings	w (default)	ternet Exp	•	Res	set
				OK		Cancel

- Click "OK"
- Click "OK"

# SoftPhone is not loading

For all other errors browse the chapter: Error - Call Center Adapter

# **Quick Test**

Test with a mobile phone (the caller ID must be transmitted)

- Incoming calls 41
  Outgoing calls 32

### 106 CTI Data Connector 4.0

## 8.3 Network Installation

Perform the following steps for network installation.

- Install call center adapter 874.0
- Copy all files to the server 120
- Workstation Setup
- Browser Support 85
- Check SoftPhone 102
- Distribute Client Setup to all PCs
- Activate Product 134



The network installation can be started from any workstation.



Only **one** Serial Number is needed. The Serial Number includes the number of PCs which can be installed.

By default, the icon is not visible on Vista and Windows 7 in the notification area. To show



the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce in the system tray, click on the up arrow. Click on **Customize**.



This will open the Notification Area lcons control panel item. Select the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and in the pick list select: **Show icon and notification**.

CTI Data Connector - Office Edition - 0 Ruf(e)	Show icon and notifications	
--	-----------------------------	--

Additionally add the red salesforce icon

### 8.3.1 Install Call Center Adapter

To install and activate the call center adapter the following steps are necessary.

### 1. System Requirements regarding Salesforce

To use the Call Center Adapter, the *Professional, Enterprise, Developer* or *Unlimited Edition* is required.

If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

Important change in Version 4 - **.NET Framework 3.5 is required.** It is installed automatically if missing.

 System Requirements regarding PBX and operating system (it is imperative to check before installation)

### **Telephone System**

To communicate with a phone system, either a CTI server (Third Party Solution) or the connection of the phone set to the PC (First Party Solution) is supported. For both systems a **TAPI driver 2.x (also referred to as TSP)** is mandatory. See details for TAPI - Where do I find the TAPI driver?

- VOIP systems like Cisco Call Manager, Avaya, Swyx or Innovaphone normally have a TAPI driver included.
- For Asterisk there are several vendors who offer a TAPI driver e.g. <u>http://</u>www.xtelsio.com or <u>http://activa.sourceforge.net</u>.
- If your VOIP / Cloud PBX system does not comes with a TAPI driver, try Global IP Telecommunications Ltd (Ninja Pro) <u>www.globalipphones.com</u>. This software works with all SIP compatible phone systems.
- Traditional PBX systems like Siemens or Alcatel often require an additional TAPI server.
- ISDN phones without a PBX are available with an inbuilt TAPI driver.
- If you are using a modem, we strongly recommend switching to a phone set connected to the PC (via USB/serial), because the TAPI drivers of modems often do offer only basic functions or do not function at all.

Please check firstly with your phone vendor about which solution meets your requirements and how you can install and configure the TAPI driver. You can contact Support@mirage-systems.de if you do have the TAPI driver installed and CTI Data Connector for Salesforce has problems with making an outgoing call or receiving incoming calls.

Some TAPI drivers do not work on **64bit operating** systems. You can use a virtual machine with 32bit operating system. An example, how this is working is explained for <u>MAC OS X.</u> [161] For Windows Vista or Windows 7 64bit, the same virtual machines can be used.

## **Operating System**

Windows XP SP3 to Windows 7 (32bit and 64 bit) is supported • .NET 3.5 is required for the salesforce call center adapter 4

### **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

#### Minimum system requirements

- IE8 +
- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like

- IE9
- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

### Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "*Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser*" - see Warning mixed content [154].
# Salesforce

The Salesforce *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* or *Developer Edition* is required for the call center functionality. If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

## See also

Configure 54 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Where do I find the TAPI driver?

# 2. Download the adapter 4.0 configuration file

Download the adapter (right mouse click, save target as) and save it on your hard disk. There is a special <u>USA / Canada</u> and <u>German</u> adapter version. For all other countries use the generic <u>adapter.xml</u>

# 3. Add the configuration file to salesforce

Select: Setup > AppSetup > Customize > Call Center > Call Centers

Click on the button: Import an select the file adapter.xml on your local hard disk

Home	Campaigns	Leads	Accounts	Contacts	Console	Cases	Reports	Dashboards	Solutions	Roadmaps	Releases	Contracts
Person	al Setup		Call C	Center	Import							
<ul> <li>My Pe</li> <li>Email</li> <li>Import</li> </ul>		on						at was just insta prise7x.xml"). <u>V</u>			ault XML call	center definitior
	op Integration enter Settings									Import Can	cel	
			New C	all Center II	nport Infori	mation						
App Se	tup				Call Cen	ter Definition	File do	\sf\3.0\files\Ada	pter.xml Bro	wse		
Custo	mize						•					
► Ta ► Ho	b Names and La me	bels								Import Can	cel	
	tivities mpaigns											
	ads											
					Brows	er for a	idapte	er.xml				

CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter 4.0 will be added to the call center list

CTI Data	Connector 4.0
Home Campaigns Leads	Accounts Contacts Console Cases Reports Dashboards Solutions Roadmaps Releases Contracts DupeCatcher DuplicateAlerts +
Expand All   Collapse A	All Call Centers
Quick Find	
	A call center corresponds to a single computer-telephony integration (CTI) system already in place at your organization. Salesforce.com users must be assigned to a call center before they can use any i
Force.com Home	Import
System Overview New!	Action Name * Version Created Date
-,	Edit   Del CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 4 4,000 13.05.2012 17:33

call center list

# 4. Configure the call center adapter

Click on the call center adapter.

### <u>Note</u>

If you make any **changes of the configuration settings** you have to logout in salesforce, right click on the blue CTI Data Connector icon and select: *Reload Salesforce Configuration* 

## Port

The Salesforce SoftPhone is a web application, which uses the port 11000. If this port is used by another application contact Support@mirage-systems.de.

### **Dialing Options**

The *dialing options* configuration depends on the PBX and on the country your are located.

CTI Data Convector - Call Centre Adapter Vention A ado close v: Chie to de un adapter ado Texte Manager de la construcción de la construcción de Texte de la construcción de text	Call Center CTI Data Connector - Call Cer All Call Centers » CTI Data Connector - Call Center	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Dating Options Outside Prefix 0 Long Datases Prefix 0 International Prefix 0 International Prefix 01	Call Center Detail	Edit Delete Clone
Configure call center	General Information	
for USA	Internal Name	CDCSFE40
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center Adapter Version 4
	Description	Integration in salesforce call center adapter for CTI Data Connector
	CTI Connector Progld	CDCSFEAdapter.CDCSFEAdapter.400
	Version	4.0
	Config Version	4.0.0
	CTI Adapter URL	http://localhost:11000
	Dialing Options	
	Outside Prefix	0
	Long Distance Prefix	0
	International Prefix	00
	Country Code	49

Configure call center for Europe or other countries

- *Outside Prefix* (number to access an outside line) e.g. in US **9**1 407-398-6913 or in Europe it is often **0** 031976354
- *Long Distance Prefix* Carrier Code to make a long distance call e.g in US **1** 407-398-6913, in Europe it is often **0** e.g. **0**31976354

- International Prefix Carrier Code to make an international call e.g. in US 011497525529339 to make a call to Germany, in Europe it is often 00 e.g. 00497525529339
- *Country Code* Country code of your country e.g US is 1, Germany 49. <u>Click here for</u> <u>a list of all country codes</u>



You have to use an <u>own adapter state</u> for each country where you have call center users.

#### Save call as a task

Each call (incoming and outgoing) can be **automatically saved** as a task / activity including the **call duration** and a **phone note**.

Save call as a task	
Subject of the task	{calltype} {time}
Autosave incoming calls (Y/N)	Y
Autosave outgoing calls (Y/N)	Y
Autosave unsuccessful calls (Y/N)	Y

• Subject of the task - configure the subject line. Either use a text like CALL or one of the following variables

{calltype} - inserts either Incoming Call or Outgoing Call
{time} - inserts the time
{date} - inserts the current date



- Autosave incoming calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an incoming call should be automatically saved. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved
- Autosave outgoing calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an outgoing call should be automatically saved. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved
- Autosave unsuccessful calls: Y = Yes, N = No. Define if an unsuccessful call = call duration with 0 seconds should be stored. If you type in a phone note the call is always saved

### Call-Wrap-Up

To rate a phone call, you can activate the Call Wrap Up feature, which is displayed at the end of the phone call in the <u>SoftPhone</u> 42.

Details how to configure it 94

**Expert Settings** Changes are only necessary in case there are problems with the adapter.

Details how to configure it 97

# 5. Add users to the call center

Now click on the button: Manage Call Center Users

Call Center CTI Data Connector - Call Cent All Call Centers » CTI Data Connector - Call Center Ada				
View: All  Create New View				
	A   B   C   D   E	F   G   H   I   J   K   L   M   N   O   P   Q   R   S   T   U   V   W   X   Y   2	Other All	
		Add More Users Remove Users		
Full Name +	Alias	Username	Role	Profile
No records to display.				
		FOHHIJIKLIMINOPORISITUVWXY2 <i>II center users</i>	! Other All	

Add the users who should use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce



If the user is not listed, he is probably assigned to another call center adapter. You have to remove the user from this adapter because one user cannot be assigned to multiple adapters at the same time.

# 6. Configure Softphone Layout

#### **General Settings**

The salesforce administrator can configure the user interface of the SoftPhone with the menu option: <u>Softphone-Layouts</u> [97]. It allows you e.g. to define which fields should appear on the SoftPhone or general settings for the display of the call.The settings are valid for **all users**.

Not all functions, which can be configured here, are supported by CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

### User specific settings

Each user can configure **Personal** settings: Setup > Personal Setup > Call Center Settings > My Softphone Settings

# 7. Configure Task Page layout

All phone calls are saved as a task. To make some special phone fields like call duration accessible for the user, they can be added to the task page layout. Select: Setup > Customize > Activities > Task Page Layouts.

Add the fields:

- Call Type
- Call Result
- Call Duration

ighlights Panel							
Customize the highlights	s panel for this page layout						
Task Detail		Edit Delete	Delete Series	Create Follow Up Tas	Create Fol	low Up Event	Custom Buttons
Task Information (Head	er visible on edit only)						
\star 🍳 Assigned To	Sample User				\star 🔍 Status	Sample State	us
* Subject	Sample Subject				Name	Sample Con	tact
Due Date	18.06.2011 15:01				Related To	Sample Con	tract
🔒 Phone	1-415-555-1212				🖻 Email	sarah.sampl	e@company.com
\star 🔍 Priority	Sample Priority						
Phone Call							N
🔒 Call Type	Sample Call Type			<u></u>	Call Duration	7.159	↓ →
Call Result	Sample Call Result						

# Troubleshooting

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content [154].

For all other errors browse the chapter: Error - Call Center Adapter 153

### 114

Salesforce offers a web page with comprehensive information and <u>questions and</u> <u>answers</u>

9

For more information about the salesforce *call center adapter* search in the salesforce online help using the search term: **call center adapter overview** 

The integration in salesforce requires one of the following salesforce editions: *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* oder *Developer Edition.* 

### 8.3.1.1 Install Multiple Call Center Adapters

If you want to have **different options depending on user groups** (e.g. sales and support or you have locations in different countries), you can install multiple Call Center Adapters.

The same applies to languages. The standard fields are automatically displayed in the user language. If you need to translate the **custom fields**, e.g. in the <u>Call Wrap Up</u> [91], just make an own adapter for each language.

### **Rename the adapter**

Click on edit and rename the fields: Internal Name and Display Name.

Call Center Detail			Edit	Delete	Clone
General Information					
	Internal Name	CDCSFESales			
	Display Name	CTI Data Connector - Call Center	Adapter \	/ersion 3	- Sales

### Import a new adapter

Import a new adapter [89] and make different settings.

#### 8.3.1.2 Call Wrap Up / Call Results

To rate a phone call, you can activate the Call Wrap Up feature, which is displayed at the end of the phone call in the <u>SoftPhone</u> 42.

The options, which are available to rate a phone call or add a call result, can be defined with Label 1 to 10.

Call Wrap Up	
Call Wrap Up Enabled (Y/N)	Y
Label 1	Got Voicemail
Value for report 1	Voicemail
Label 2	Busy in Meeting or on the phone
Value for report 2	Meeting / Phone
Label 3	Away from his desk
Value for report 3	Away
Label 4	Decision < 1 week
Value for report 4	Immediate Decision
Label 5	Decision 1 < 1 month
Value for report 5	Decision 1m
Label 6	Decision < 2 months
Value for report 6	Decision 2m
Label 7	Decision >2 months
Value for report 7	Decision >2m
Label 8	Left Voicemail
Value for report 8	Left Voicemail
Label 9	Out of Office
Value for report 9	Out of Office
Label 10	No interest
Value for report 10	No interest

This is how it will appear on the softphone.



The selected item is saved with the note as an **activity** using the text, which is defined as: **value for report.** You can either use the same text for the report as the label or use another value.

Example:

Label: Send Quote - Value for Report: Send Quote. The text Send Quote is saved for the report.

Label: Send Quote - Value for Report: *CODE-SQ*. The text *CODE-SQ* is saved for the report.

A different value for the report e.g. makes sense, if you configure adapters in different languages but you want to have the same result text in the report.

See also: <u>Reports</u> 48



If you want to update fields depending on a phone call, create a workflow within salesforce and use the 3 call specific fields (*Call Type, Call Result, Call Duration*) described in <u>step 6</u> step 1 to trigger the workflow.

If you want to have **different options depending on user groups** (e.g. sales and support or you have locations in different countries) you can install multiple <u>Call Center</u> <u>Adapters</u> 4.

# **Activity History**

A good idea is to add the call wrap up code in the activity history view. One glimpse and you are informed about the result of the last call.

Activity I	History		Log A	Call Mail Merge Send An Email	Request Update	/iew All
Action	Subject	Related To	Task	Due Date	Call Result	
Edit   Del	Outgoing Call		✓	19.07.2012	Voicemail	
Edit   Del	Outgoing Call		✓	19.07.2012	Meeting / Phone	
Edit   Del	Incoming Call		✓	18.07.2012	Decision 1m	

### 8.3.1.3 Expert Settings

Changes are only necessary in case there are problems with the adapter.

### Polling interval in salesforce adapter

Change this value if you get calls signaled in the SoftPhone with a large delay. The smaller this value, the faster events are handled within the SoftPhone.

## **Timeout for http requests**

In case the SoftPhone does not react after some time and this happens frequently, then change this value to 50.000 to 1000.000

Expert Setting
Polling interval in salesforce adapter (10-2000
ms) - Default = 500:
Timeout for http requests: 900000

### 8.3.1.4 Softphone Layout

# **Configure Layout**

You can define, which fields should be displayed on the SoftPhone. This definition can be

done with different settings for internal, inbound and outbound calls. You can not only display the name of the caller but also information like VIP status, turnover, service level agreement, language or other information.

Select: Setup > AppSetup > Customize > Call Center > SoftPhone Layouts

### Cases

If you want to work with cases and assign a call to a case, you have to add the **Case** object for **incoming** and **outgoing** calls in the SoftPhone Layout.

Personal Setup		
My Personal Information	Select Call Type Outbou	und 💌
Email		
Import	Softphone Layout	Help about this section
Desktop Integration	Display these call-related fields:	
Call Center Settings		
	Dialed Number, Caller ID	Edit
App Setup	Display these salesforce.com objects:	
Customize	Contact. Account. Lead	Add / Remove Objects
Tab Names and Labels	<ul> <li>Contact, Account, Leau</li> </ul>	Add / Remove Objects
▶ Home	If single Contact found, display: Name, Title	Edit
Activities	If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.	
Campaigns	If single Account found, display: Account Name, Type, Account Number	Edit
Leads	If multiple matches found, only Account Name is displayed.	
Accounts	If single Lead found, display: Name, Company, Title, Lead Source, Country	Edit
Contacts	I multiple and hound, dispinay: Name, Company, hite, Lead Source, Country If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.	Edit
Opportunities		
Quotes		
Forecasts (Customizable)     Cases		
<ul> <li>Entitlement Management</li> </ul>		
Self-Service		
Call Center		
Call Centers		
Directory Numbers		

#### Configure Cases - Step 1

Click on: *Add / Remove Objects* and select the **Case** object. Then ensure that the **Case Number** is displayed in the SoftPhone.

#### Display these salesforce.com objects:

Contact, Account, Lead, Case, Task

- If single Contact found, display: Name, Department, Title, Languages, Assistant If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.
- If single Account found, display: Account Name, Type, Account Number, SLA If multiple matches found, only Account Name is displayed.
- If single Lead found, display: Name, Company, Title, Lead Source If multiple matches found, only Name is displayed.
- ▼ If single Case found, display: Case Number, Status, Priority



#### Configure Cases - Step 2

#### **Internal Calls**

To configure internal calls, you have to define the length of internal phone numbers in the configuration wizard 69

Within the SoftPhone Layout, select the call type: Internal

The next step is to assign the object, which should be used for the search. Select: User

The search within users will work for the fields *Phone* and *Extension*, but not for the field Mobile. Although it is possible to search in contacts, the search will provide wrong results - e.g. extension 212 calls and this would find an address with the phone number 212.827.1991

The calls are saved as an activity with the call type: Internal Call

#### SoftPhone Layout Edit

		Save Cancel		
Name	Standard SoftPhone Lay	🖌 Is Default Layout	[]	
			Select Call Type Internal 💌	
ftphone Layout				Help about this section
)isplay these call-related fields:				
<ul> <li>Caller ID, Dialed Number</li> </ul>				Edi
isplay these salesforce.com objects:				
Voer     Available     Account     Adapter BMS Contact History     Campaign     Case     Contact Data Dcin DupeCatcher Duplicate Alert DupeCatcher Filter DupeCatcher Filter DupeCatcher Filter Bule DupeCatcher Potential Duplicate DupeCatcher Potential Duplicate DupeCatcher Required FieldSupport	Add Up Add Up Remove Down			Collapse

Configure internal calls

### 8.3.2 Copy all files to the server

# Start the installation on the workstation and not on the server. The installation just copies files to the server.

You can select during the installation whether you want to install a Single User or Multi User system. Select **Multi User System** to for a network installation.

The setup just copies the files to the server. This allows having all files installed on one folder. Each workstation uses these files.

The installation can be started from any workstation.

121



You have to give **full read and write access for all users** to the installation folder.

### See also

Network Installation - general information

## 8.3.3 Workstation Setup

To install a workstation (client PC) perform the following steps:

- Open the file explorer on your Workstation
- Open the installation folder on the server default folder is ...programs\CTI Data Connector for Salesforce
- Start Setup.exe on your Workstation
- <u>Make the Minimum Configuration Settings</u> 22 use the **button Help** to get detail information about the configuration options

All settings which have been defined by the administrator are automatically applied. For

details see: Distribute Client Setup.

# **Necessary Rights**

During installation DLLs are registered. The user who installs the application needs a right to register DLLs.

The user who runs the application needs the following rights on the installation folder on the server:

- Files cdcsfe.xml and cdcsfe.lic: read and write access
- All other files: read access



### **Browser**

In case Internet Explorer is used, you should push the the necessary settings through a group policy to all users. See Internet Explorer.

# Silent Setup

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce supports a silent setup without any user interaction. Only at the end of the setup the user has to select his TAPI device driver. If Microsoft .NET needs to be installed, there will always be a license agreement dialog, which has to be confirmed.

Start the silent setup with: setup.exe /exenoui INSTALLTYPE="/S"

	Installation	123
<ul> <li>CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Configuration Wizard</li> </ul>	×	
Here you can configure CTI Data Connector for Salesforce to obtain a basic functior incoming calls. After the installation, individual settings can be done with the Configu Wizard. Choose the button Help to learn more about the configuration settings.		
Telephony service provider/TAPI device driver:		
< Telephone Simulator >		
Dialing Rules		

# Icon in the System Tray

By default, the icon is not visible on Vista and Windows 7 in the notification area. To show

the icon for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce in the system tray, click on the up arrow. Click on **Customize**.



This will open the Notification Area Icons control panel item. Select the icon for CTI Data



Connector for Salesforce and in the pick list select: Show icon and notification.



Additionally add the red salesforce icon

See also

Network Installation - general information

## 8.3.4 Check Softphone

After login in Salesforce you should see the Salesforce SoftPhone at the left upper corner of the browser. The SoftPhone is only available on the **main screens** like Home, Lead, Account, Contact or Cases but not in screens like Setup.

Home	Campaigns	Leads
	Ready for Calls	•
O Line	e <u>1</u> Open	
	mil	age

Using the <u>service cloud</u> [45], the SoftPhone appears at the bottom right corner.

#### Installation

125

🛛 Accoun	ts 🛛 🔽					
All Accoun	ts	Edit   Delete   Create N	ew View			e (
New Accour	t ()		AB	C   D   E   F   G   H   I   J   K		T U V W X Y Z Other
Action	Account Name 1	Account Site	Billing State/Province	Phone	Туре	Owner Alias
Edit   Del	Burlington Textiles Corp of		NC	(336) 222-7000	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	Dickenson plc		KS	+1(785) 241-6200 5	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	Die Idee GmbH			089/1250-0	Prospect	MI
Edit   Del	Edge Communications		TX	+1(512) 757-6000 %	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	Express Logistics and Tran	2	OR	(503) 421-7800 🍾	Customer - Channel	<u>MI</u>
Edit   Del	Firma 1			075256991 %		MI
Edit   Del	GenePoint		CA	(650) 867-3450 🍾	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	Grand Hotels & Resorts Ltd		L	<u>(312) 596-1000</u> 🍾	Customer - Direct	M
Edit   Del	International Ltd		United Kingdom	00442073330033 🍆		MI
Edit   Del	Mirage Computer Systems			07525529339		MI
Edit   Del	Pyramid Construction Inc.			(014) 427-4427	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	sForce		CA	(415) 901-7000 %		MI
Edit   Del	SR Test					MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas Corp.		NY	+1(212) 842-5500 %	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas, Singapore		Singapore	(650) 450-8810 🍾	Customer - Direct	MI
Edit   Del	United Oil & Gas, UK		UK	+44 191 4956203 🍾	Customer - Direct	М
Edit   Del	United Whiskey Destilleries		SL44QQ	+44734273833 %	Customer - Channel	MI
Edit   Del	University of Arizona		AZ	(520) 773-9050 🍾	Customer - Direct	м
18 of 18 🔻	0 Selected -		∢  Previous	Maxt & M		Page 1

Service Cloud Console - Main Screen

# **Internet Explorer**

If you are running Internet Explorer you probably receive the following warning

Do you want to view only the web content that was delivered securely? (Warning mixed content)

Security	Warning	×
A	Do you want to view only the webp securely?	age content that was delivered
	This webpage contains content that will no connection, which could compromise the	
Mo	ore Info	Yes <u>N</u> o

The warning can be disabled using the following steps:

• Go to Tools -> Internet Options -> Security -> Local Intranet

Internet Options
General Security Privacy Content Connections Programs Advanced
Select a zone to view or change security settings.
Internet Local intranet Trusted sites Restricted sites
Local intranet Sites
This zone is for all websites that are found on your intranet.
Security level for this zone
Allowed levels for this zone: All
Medium-low     Appropriate for websites on your local network     (intranet)     Most content will be run without prompting you     Unsigned ActiveX controls will not be downloaded     Same as Medium level without prompts
Enable Protected Mode (requires restarting Internet Explorer)
Custom level Default level
Reset all zones to default level
OK Cancel Apply

- Click "Custom Level"
- Select "Enable" for "Display mixed content"

Security Settings - Local Intranet Zone	
Settings	
<ul> <li>Disable</li> <li>Enable</li> <li>Allow webpages to use restricted protocols for active conten</li> <li>Disable</li> <li>Enable</li> <li>Prompt</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Allow websites to open windows without address or status b;</li> <li>Disable</li> <li>Enable</li> </ul>	
Display mixed content  Disable  Enable  Prompt  Don't prompt for client certificate selection when no certificat	
Disable     Fnable	
*Takes effect after you restart Internet Explorer	
Reset custom settings Reset to: Medium-low (default)   Reset	
OK Cancel	]

- Click "OK"
- Click "OK"

# SoftPhone is not loading

For all other errors browse the chapter: <u>Error - Call Center Adapter</u>

# **Quick Test**

Test with a mobile phone (the caller ID must be transmitted)

- Incoming calls 41
- Outgoing calls 32

# 8.4 Terminal Server

128

Terminal Server installation is not supported with version 4. Install version 3 instead. We are working on a solution for this problem.

First check, if your TAPI server is approved for Terminal Server usage. You then do not need additional licenses for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. If the TAPI driver is installed on the local PC (telephone handset is directly connected to the PC) and CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is running on the Terminal Server, then the **Terminal Server Server Add-On** for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is necessary. This allows the local TAPI driver to communicate with the application on the Terminal Server.

# Installation with TAPI driver installed on Terminal Server

If the TAPI server is Terminal server approved the installation is done as follows

- Start the installer package through the control panel
- Proceed as explained in the network installation 106 chapter
- During the <u>Workstation Setup</u> [121], select in the program manager dialogue: **Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce for all users.**

If there are multiple Terminal Servers, start the workstation setup 121 on each server.

Every user can select a TAPI driver when he runs CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. There should be a list with multiple extensions listed in the TAPI driver selection.

# Installation with TAPI driver installed on the local PC (Terminal Server Add-On required)

Some TAPI drivers don't work on a Terminal Server (e.g. there is no 64bit TAPI driver or the driver is not Terminal Server compliant). Having this situation you can install the TAPI driver on the **local PC**. The installation process requires an additional setup and the license for the Terminal Server Add-On.

- Install files on the Terminal Server
- Install files on the local PC 132

A Citrix Server Add-On will be available shortly. Please contact Support@miragesystems.de for more information.

# 8.4.1 Install files on Terminal Server

# Step 1

Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce on the Terminal Server

- Start the installer package through the control panel [130]
- Run the <u>Network Installation</u>
- During the <u>Workstation Setup</u> select the TAPI driver < Terminal Server Installation >.

The next step is to install additional files on the Terminal Server.

- Apply the Activation Key 78 you got when buying the Terminal Server Add-On
- Copy the file **ts-serverinstall.exe** to the installation directory of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce on the Terminal Server
- Start the file ts-serverinstall.exe. It just copies some files on the server

Now continue with Step 2 - Install files on the local PC [132]

#### 8.4.1.1 Start installer package

To install an application on the Terminal Server you have to start the installer through the **control panel**. Just follow follow the steps below to start the installer.



Start installer



Step 1

131

Run Installation Program	ר <b>א</b>
	Windows was unable to find the installation program. Click Back to try again. Click Browse to find the installation program manually.
	Open: Browse
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext> Cancel

Step 2

Browse						×
<b>€ • •</b>	- Administra	ator 👻 Downloads		👻 🛃 Se	arch	
🔄 Organize 🔻	Views	🔻 📑 New Folder				0
Favorite Links			▼ Dater			Size  Tac
Nesktop		cdcoeinstall305	9/24/7	2012 11:51 4	Application	20,436 KB
Computer						
Documents						
More »						
Folders	~					
🧾 Desktop	-					
Administrator						
Contacts						
Desktop						
Documents						
Downloads						
Favorites						
Music						
Dich was	•	•				
	File name:	cdcoeinstall305		-	Setup Programs	•
		1			I	
					<u>O</u> pen	Cancel
						//.

Select the Installer package of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce - the name of the package can be different per product and version

### 8.4.2 Install files on the local PC

### Step 2

Each PC, needs a small component of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, which communicates with the Terminal Server.

- Install the TAPI driver from the phone set
- From the installation directory on the server, start the file ts-clientinstall.exe
- It installs the necessary files. At the end of the installation you have to configure the TAPI driver.



On the next screen only select your TAPI driver and leave the other settings on their default values.

		Installation
CTI Data Connecto	r - Office Edition Configuration Wizard	8
ncoming calls. After the in	I Data Connector - Office Edition to obtain a stallation, individual settings can be done wit h Help to learn more about the configuration	th the Configuration
Close Microsoft Outlook be	fore you select a contact folder!	
elephony service provide	r/TAPI device driver:	
< Telephone Simulator >		
Dial tone digits for externa		3
Dial tone digits for externa	l calls:	3
Dial tone digits for externa Minimum length of phone n Choose Microsoft Outlook	I calls: number indicating an external call: Contact folders	3
Dial tone digits for externa Minimum length of phone n Choose Microsoft Outlook	l calls: number indicating an external call: Contact folders olders	3
Dial tone digits for externa Minimum length of phone n Choose Microsoft Outlook	l calls: number indicating an external call: Contact folders olders	3 F <u>o</u> lders
Dial tone digits for externa Minimum length of phone n Choose Microsoft Outlook Show all contact fo Show only default o	l calls: number indicating an external call: Contact folders olders	

You have to **reboot** after the installation to initialize the connection to the Terminal Server.

## Windows 64bit Client

If the client PC uses Windows 64bit you have to use the 32bit mstsc.exe.

First rename the 64-bit mstsc.exe from System32 to prevent it from replacing the 32-bit process. This is simple if you have rights to rename that file. If you're on NTFS you may get a "You require permission from Trusted Installer to make changes to this file" error.

To solve this error, you need to take Ownership of the file and give yourself full permissions:

- Browse to %SystemRoot%\System32
- Right click mstsc.exe and choose Properties
- Go to the Security tab
- Click Advanced

- Go to the Owner tab
- Click Edit
- From the "Change owner to:" list, choose your user name
- Click OK
- Go to the Permissions tab
- Click Change Permissions...
- Click Add
- Enter your user name and click OK
- Tick the box in the Allow column for Full control
- Click OK
- Click OK
- A Windows Security warning will come up; click Yes to proceed
- Click OK

Now, you can rename the file mstsc.exe to something like mstsc.exe.old or mstsc.exe.bak

Then, you can launch mstsc.exe from %SystemRoot%\SysWOW64 and you will have 32bit Remote Desktop Connection running. Make a shortcut of the 32 Bit mstsc.exe to your desktop or Pin it to your start menu.

### See also

Where do I find the TAPI driver? 150 System requirements - TAPI driver 148

# 8.5 Activate Product

During the trial period, the activation screen appears with each start of the program. You need a Serial Number for activating the product - see Buy Serial Number

You do not have to reinstall the version and you can directly activate it if:

- You have installed the trial version as a single user version and you bought a single user version
- You have installed the trial version as a network version and you bought a network version

and

• The version you have installed has the same version number like the version you bought - see <u>How can I check my version number?</u>

Always activate the software on a workstation and never on the server.

# What happens during activation?

The activation process will connect the licence to the PC or Server. **Use the Serial Number only on the PC / Server you want to use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. The Serial Number cannot be used twice.** After the activation is done, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will run only on this PC / Server. Your hardware data, Serial Number, name, e-mail address and some program-specific data is transferred to our activation center. No other data stored on your PC will be transmitted.

The activation process can be done from any PC, even if you have a network version (starting the activation process on the server is not possible)

# **Select Activation Method**

On the first screen select: *I have a Serial Number and I want to activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce*. This will give you a selection how to activate the product. The Online Activation [138] is the recommended activation method and should be used if an Internet connection is available. <u>E-Mail Activation</u> [140] can be used in case the online activation is blocked.

(note: the screen you see could be slightly different)



Message - Serial Number required

If you get the message, that a Serial Number is required, press the button *Next* and select between <u>online</u> and <u>e-mail activation</u>. A Serial Number is required. Without a Serial Number the application can only be terminated using the *End* button.

Activation of CTI	× 1
Dis ta statig	Thank you for your interest in this product
	Serial Number required
Notice: This is the complete application. You don't have to download or install it again.	To further use this product you have to activate it by entering a Serial Number.
	You don't have a Serial Number?
	Buy a Serial Number
0	Next End



## See also

Buy Serial Number 137 Online Activation 138 E-Mail Activation 138 Reinstall Software 143 Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License 164

# 8.5.1 Buy Serial Number

The Serial Number is your proof of purchase. It is unique and will look like this:

## dO8uc-G1iC9-jOGeA-BqgEX-U71ID-0V1VX

There are 6 blocks each with 5 characters. The blocks are separated by a hyphen for better readability.

For a network version, the Serial Number also includes the number of network licenses.

# **Buy Serial Number**

If you do not have a valid serial number, click on the Link **Buy a Serial Number online** 

# Activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

Activate the product Online 138 or by E-Mail 140.

# 8.5.2 Online Activation

The Online Activation needs the <u>Serial Number</u> [137], company name, your name, country and your e-mail address.. Press the button **Next.** Then the licence will be verified online and activated. If the Activation is successful, the screen <u>Activation finished</u> [143] is displayed.

No additional step will be required. CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can now be used on this PC / Server.

Backup your Serial Number. You will need it for a <u>reinstallation.</u>

Activation of CTI					8
Pine a safety		Please	enter the a	ctivation	data
	Serial Number	J94GC	-4fEHF-I2G7p-5YgB6-	XiSFO-2VpDU	
		Where do y	ou find your Serial Nu	imber?	
Please enter all required information for the activation process.	Customer Number Company	Smarti	inc Corp.		
	Salutation				_
	First Name	Tom			_
	Last Name	Hanks			_
	Country	United	States		•
	E-Mail Address	tom.ha	anks@hotmail.com		
0		Back	Next	End	I

### 8.5.3 E-Mail Activation

The E-Mail Activation needs the <u>Serial Number</u>, company name, your name, country and your e-mail address.

Activation of CTI				X
Pine a safety		Please	enter the a	ctivation data
	Serial Number	J94GC	-4fEHF-I2G7p-5YgB6-	XiSFO-2VpDU
		Where do	you find your Serial Nu	imber?
Please enter all required information				
for the activation process.	Customer Num	nber		
	Company	Smart	Inc Corp.	
	Salutation			
	First Name	Tom		
	Last Name	Hanks		
	Country	United	d States	•
	E-Mail Address	tom.h	anks@hotmail.com	
0		Back	Next	End

E-Mail Activation

# **Request Unlock Key**

After filling out the screen, select: *Request Unlock Key by E-Mail - send E-Mail*. This will open your default E-Mail client. An e-mail with the hardware IDs and licence information will be created. Press **send** to send the e-mail to our activation center. You will get an **Unlock Key** back within 2-3 business days.

140

Clipboard		ାନ୍ତ୍ର Basic Text
	From •	Dieter Härle
Send	To	register@registerserver.net
Sena	Cc	
	Bcc	
	Subject:	Activation Request for CTI
Please Name/ Serial N E-Mail- Installa 01: 495 02: CB4 03: B6E 04: E12 05: 394 06: 9A9 07: DE2 08: E60 09: E56 10: 58B 11: 12: E12	do not char (Company: 9 Number: J94 Address: to tion Codes: B90B8 B33287 ABB6A 66C60 EB475 983C03 278BD8 FC245 60DC8 11B944 66C60	
Project User In		ASYGO-301 - CDC02
		e comments to the Activation Center)
Custon		



In case your e-mail client does not open or you use a Browser based e-mail, you can open your e-mail and copy the content with CTRL+V. The e-mail address to send the e-mail is displayed on the next screen.

# **Enter Unlock Key**

After requesting the Unlock Key by fax, the screen shown below will appear during each start of the program. Type in the Unlock Key you got back by e-mail or fax. Press the button *Next.* If the Activation is successful, the screen <u>Activation finished</u> is displayed.

Activation of CTI				ß
The same			Apply A	ctivation Key
Enter all received keys to unlock the product.	If you have received information to unlock CTI, please enter the Unlock Key(s). If there is more than one key, enter one key after another in the correct order. Make sure to enter keys in a case-sensitive manner.			
	1			
	Apply Key			
			12.03.2011 16:14 for t 0-2VpDU. Activation Me	
0		Activate again	Next	End
Enter Unlock Key				

Backup your Serial Number. You will need it for a reinstallation [14].

## 8.5.4 Activation finished

Either after the <u>Online Activation</u> screen or after entering the <u>Unlock Key</u>, the final screen appears to signal that the activation was successful. Press the button *Next* to complete the activation process to get the screen **Activation finished**.



9

If you got additional keys, e.g. for an update subscription, you can copy and paste the keys now.

### 8.5.5 Reinstall Software

You can reinstall the application **on the same PC / Server** as often as you like. First uninstall CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, delete the complete **installation folder**, then reinstall the application - see <u>How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce</u>?

134

See also

Installation 85

# 8.6 Install an update

To install the latest update.

# 8.7 Transfer license / Move to another computer

You can move the license to a **new computer** (single user installation) or **new server** (network installation). The license will be deactivated on the current computer / server. The Serial Number can then be used again on another computer / server to activate the product.

This process requires an **online connection**. You only can transfer a license for a full version (no demo version).

## <u>Note</u>

The functionality is available within a **network installation** only if the application is started with cdcsfe **-admin** to prevent, that the license is transferred accidentally. A single PC within a network can be always deactivated without an online connection - see <u>Deactivate</u> a PC within a network 167.

**Step 1 - Show License Viewer** 

Blue icon

, right mouse click - Show License Information

# Step 2 - Transfer License

Click on the button Transfer License


Button - Transfer License

Thereafter an information is displayed, that the license will be deactivated



Screen - License Deactivation

# Step 3 - Activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce on a new computer

You can reuse the Serial Number on a new computer to activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce



- After the license was deactivated, you can reactivate it during the next program start as long as the Serial Number was not used on another computer
- The license can be transferred multiple times between computers Example: Transfer license from PC A to PC B. Then deactivate on PC B and activate again on PC A

# 8.8 Installation FAQ

This chapter introduces Frequently Asked Questions around the installation process.

- System Requirements TAPI driver 148
- Where do I find the TAPI driver? [150]
- How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce?

#### 8.8.1 System Requirements - Operating system

Windows XP to Windows 7 (32bit and 64 bit) is supported

• .NET Framework 3.5 is required for the salesforce call center adapter 4

## **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

Minimum system requirements

- IE8 +
- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like

- IE9
- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

## Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "*Do you want to view* only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content [154]. -

148

## 8.8.2 System Requirements - TAPI driver

## **Telephone System**

To communicate with a phone system, either a CTI server (Third Party Solution) or the connection of the phone set to the PC (First Party Solution) is supported. For both systems a **TAPI driver 2.x (also referred to as TSP)** is mandatory. See details for TAPI - Where do I find the TAPI driver?

- VOIP systems like Cisco Call Manager, Avaya, Swyx or Innovaphone normally have a TAPI driver included.
- For Asterisk there are several vendors who offer a TAPI driver e.g. <u>http://www.xtelsio.com</u> or <u>http://activa.sourceforge.net</u>.
- If your VOIP / Cloud PBX system does not comes with a TAPI driver, try Global IP Telecommunications Ltd (Ninja Pro) <u>www.globalipphones.com</u>. This software works with all SIP compatible phone systems.
- Traditional PBX systems like Siemens or Alcatel often require an additional TAPI server.
- ISDN phones without a PBX are available with an inbuilt TAPI driver.
- If you are using a modem, we strongly recommend switching to a phone set connected to the PC (via USB/serial), because the TAPI drivers of modems often do offer only basic functions or do not function at all.

Please check firstly with your phone vendor about which solution meets your requirements and how you can install and configure the TAPI driver. You can contact Support@mirage-systems.de if you do have the TAPI driver installed and CTI Data Connector for Salesforce has problems with making an outgoing call or receiving incoming calls.

Some TAPI drivers do not work on **64bit operating** systems. You can use a virtual machine with 32bit operating system. An example, how this is working is explained for  $\underline{MAC \ OS \ X.}$  For Windows Vista or Windows 7 64bit, the same virtual machines can be used.

## **Operating System**

Windows XP SP3 to Windows 7 (32bit and 64 bit) is supported • .NET 3.5 is required for the salesforce call center adapter 4

#### **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

#### Minimum system requirements

• IE8 +

- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like

• IE9

- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

## Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "Do you want to view only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content

## Salesforce

The Salesforce *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* or *Developer Edition* is required for the call center functionality. If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

#### See also

Configure 54 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Where do I find the TAPI driver?

## 8.8.3 Where do I find the TAPI driver?

**Telephony Application Programming Interface (TAPI)** is a programming interface for CTI (computer telephony integration) applications.

Applications using TAPI need a **TAPI driver (also referred to as TSP)**. This TAPI driver has to be delivered by the **phone manufacturer**. As this driver is always device-dependent, it is not possible to use a generic driver which is supplied with the operating system. The driver often has the name of the manufacturer or the phone system, sometimes in combination with the extension number.

To check whether a TAPI driver is installed, do the following (Instructions for Windows XP).

- Start, Control Panel
- Phone and Modem options
- TAB advanced



There are a lot of drivers which come with Windows like *NDIS Proxy TAPI Service Provider*. Search for a driver with the name of the **PBX, PBX vendor or your direct line**. If this driver is missing, you probably do not have the correct TAPI driver for your PBX.

If your TAPI driver is not listed here see: <u>I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration</u> wizard

#### See also

System Requirements TAPI driver Configure 54 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

## 8.8.4 How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce?

During the trial period, the activation screen appears with each start of the program. You need a Serial Number for activating the product - see Buy Serial Number

You do not have to reinstall the version and you can directly activate it if:

- You have installed the trial version as a single user version and you bought a single user version
- You have installed the trial version as a network version and you bought a network version

and

• The version you have installed has the same version number like the version you bought - see How can I check my version number?



Always activate the software on a workstation and never on the server.

# What happens during activation?

The activation process will connect the licence to the PC or Server. **Use the Serial Number only on the PC / Server you want to use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. The Serial Number cannot be used twice.** After the activation is done, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will run only on this PC / Server. Your hardware data, Serial Number, name, e-mail address and some program-specific data is transferred to our activation center. No other data stored on your PC will be transmitted.

The activation process can be done from any PC, even if you have a network version (starting the activation process on the server is not possible)

# **Select Activation Method**

On the first screen select: *I have a Serial Number and I want to activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce*. This will give you a selection how to activate the product. The <u>Online Activation</u> is the recommended activation method and should be used if an Internet connection is available. <u>E-Mail Activation</u> to used in case the online

#### activation is blocked.



(note: the screen you see could be slightly different)

#### ■ Message - Serial Number required

If you get the message, that a Serial Number is required, press the button *Next* and select between <u>online</u> and <u>e-mail activation</u>. A Serial Number is required. Without a Serial Number the application can only be terminated using the *End* button.

Activation of CTI	× · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Ne statist	Thank you for your interest in this product
	Serial Number required
Notice: This is the complete application. You don't have to download or install it again.	To further use this product you have to activate it by entering a Serial Number.
	You don't have a Serial Number?
	Buy a Serial Number
0	Next End



### See also

Buy Serial Number 137 Online Activation 138 E-Mail Activation 138 Reinstall Software 143 Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License 164

## 8.8.5 Errors - Call Center Adapter

**Error Messages** 

The following errors could occur. After changing a configuration setting always logout from salesforce.

• If the adapter is generally working but the SoftPhone suddenly does not respond on

calls, right mouse click on the blue icon and select *Restart Salesforce SoftPhone*. Then click on the Home TAB in Salesforce to refresh the page. If this happens frequently, then change the value *Timeout for http requests* in the expert settings [97]

Do you want to view only the web content that was delivered securely? (Warning mixed content)

Security Warnin	g	C. No. Married	-	×
Do yo	u want to view only the ely?	webpage conten	nt that was deliv	vered
	ebpage contains content tha ction, which could compromis			ITTPS
<u>M</u> ore Info			<u>Y</u> es 1	No

The warning can be disabled using the following steps:

• Go to Tools -> Internet Options -> Security -> Local Intranet

Internet Options
General Security Privacy Content Connections Programs Advanced
Select a zone to view or change security settings.
🥥 🔩 🗸 🚫
Internet Local intranet Trusted sites Restricted sites
Local intranet Sites This zone is for all websites that are found on your intranet.
Security level for this zone Allowed levels for this zone: All
Medium-low     Appropriate for websites on your local network     (intranet)     Most content will be run without prompting you     Unsigned ActiveX controls will not be downloaded     Same as Medium level without prompts
Enable Protected Mode (requires restarting Internet Explorer)      Custom level      Default level
Reset all zones to default level
OK Cancel Apply

- Click "Custom Level"
- Select "Enable" for "Display mixed content"

rity Settings - Local Intranet Zone	
<ul> <li>Disable</li> </ul>	•
Enable	
Allow webpages to use restricted protocols for active of	onten
Disable	
Enable	
Prompt	
Allow websites to open windows without address or sta	itus bi
Disable	
Enable	
Display mixed content	
Disable	
Enable	
Prompt	
Don't prompt for client certificate selection when no cer	tificat
Disable	-
Fnahla	•
	,
*Takes effect after you restart Internet Explorer	
eset custom settings	
	. )
eset to: Medium-low (default)	set
	Cancel
OK	Cancer

- Click "OK"
- Click "OK"
- The call is signaled in the SoftPhone with a large delay change the value for *Polling interval in salesforce adapter* in the <u>expert settings</u> of
- Red error box: 500 stream:1: XML file has no top-element. All well-formed XML files have a single top-level element.

If a call center adapter from another vendor was installed on this computer, **uninstall this application and reinstall** CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

The other reason for this error is an installation issue with the Windows XML subsystem, MSXML6, which has not been installed or properly registered.

Login as administrator

156

- Navigate your Windows Explorer to c:\windows\system32
- Double click on msxml6.dll. It'll give you a window saying it doesn't know what to do with it. Select "select program from list."
- In the ensuing window, press Browse. There, type "c:\windows\system32\regsvr32" and confirm the selection with OK
- Red error box: Error connecting to the salesforce.com AppExchange API the SoftPhone does not load

Home	Chatter	Accounts	C
Error co Salesfor API:	nnecting to ce.com App	the Exchange	

If you get this error, contact salesforce support to enable the API. The API is disabled by default in a **test account** 

If you are using Professional / Enterprise Edition or higher see: <u>API is not enabled for</u> this Organization or Partner

Red error box: An Adapter for your Call Center was not found or could not be started. Please contact your Salesforce.com administrator to rectify this issue



The error message indicates, that the Salesforce Adapter DLL could not be registered

- In case you installed a call center adapter from other vendors **uninstall** it and **delete the adapter within salesforce**
- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (<u>blue icon</u> 24], right mouse click, Quit)
- Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using Windows Administrator credentials
- If the error persists send us a log file 100
- B Red error box: API is not enabled for this Organization or Partner

If you are using a test account see: Error connecting to the salesforce.com AppExchange API - the SoftPhone does not load If you are using Professional / Enterprise Edition or higher, check the **profile** (Setup, Administration Setup, Manage Users, **Profiles**) which is associated to the user. There is an option: **API Enabled**. This must be checked. Also verify if the option: **Call Center** is checked with the option *Visible* 

Red error box: Unable to start the salesforce.com Office Tookit

DLLs have not been registered properly. Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using **Windows Administrator** credentials

Note for Administrators: The file **SF\_MSApi4.dll** is not registered. It is in the folder c: \program files\CTI Data Connector for salesforce 4.0\call center adapter and can be manually registered using regsvr32

Red error box: Unable to start the softphone XML subsystem

Home	Campaigns	Leads
Softphor Please c Salesfor	nable to start the ne XML subsyste contact your rce.com administ nis issue.	
Create	New	•

This error means that the XML subsystem, MSXML6, has not been installed or properly registered. Search "Unable to start the Softphone XML subsystem." in Salesforce.com Help & Training for troubleshooting steps.

• Download MSXML6 Parser .Restart Windows after installation

Note for Administrators: The file **msxml6.dll** is missing or not registered. It is in the folder c:\windows\system32 and can be manually registered using regsvr32

■ Microsoft Visual C++ Debug Library

Error Message

159

Microso	ft Visual C++ Debug Library 🛛 🛛 🔀
0	Debug Assertion Failed!
•	Program: C:\PROGRA~2\CTI\CALLCE~1\SALESF~1.EXE File: c:\programme\microsoft visual studio 9.0\vc\include\xstring Line: 112
	Expression: string iterator not dereferencable
	For information on how your program can cause an assertion failure, see the Visual C++ documentation on asserts.
	(Press Retry to debug the application)
	Abort Retry Ignore

The error message indicates, that different versions of the Salesforce Adapter DLL are installed

- In case you installed a call center adapter from other vendors **uninstall** it and **delete the adapter within salesforce**
- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (<u>blue icon</u> 24], right mouse click, Quit)
- Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using Windows Administrator credentials
- If the error persists send us a log file
- The SoftPhone does not load in Firefox or Safari

See Browser Support 85

Phone icon is grey

Right to the phone number there is a **grey** icon instead of a green icon or the text: *click to dial disabled* is displayed when you click on a phone number

Check if the red salesforce icon is visible See also System Tray icon.

The icon is NOT visible

If the icon is not visible quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and start it again. If the icon is still not visible

- Check if an error in a red box appears 154
- If there is no error message, install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using **Windows Administrator** credentials

- If the error persists send us a log file
- The icon is visible
  - Check if you get an <u>API error</u> [157]
  - If the error persists send us a log file 160

## **Questions and Answers**

Salesforce offers a web page with comprehensive information and <u>questions and</u> <u>answers</u>

# Send Log File

In case an error cannot be solved, send us a log file

- Right click on the red salesforce icon 2. Then select **Logging**.... See also System Tray icon.
- Check High Errors, informational messages, and XML

og Level		10 11 10 000 m	
High - Errors, in	formational me	ssages, and XML	
Medium - Errors	and informatio	nal messages	
Low - Errors onl	ly		
rowser Connector	-		
C:\PROGRA~2\CT	IDAT~1.0\CAL	LCE~1\browser_conn	ector.log .
TI Connector Log	File		
-		-	
C: PROGRA~2\CT	IDAT~1.0\CAL	LCE~1\cti_connector	.log .

- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (<u>blue icon</u> <sup>24</sup>), right mouse click, Quit) and **start it again**
- Send both log files (browser\_connector.log and cti\_connector.log) to Support@miragesystems.de. You find the files in the folder 4.0\call center adapter.

160

The integration in salesforce requires one of the following salesforce editions: *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* oder *Developer Edition.* 

# 8.9 MAC OS X

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can be used on MAC OS X in combination with <u>Parallels Desktop for MAC</u> (recommended) or VMware. As host operating system Windows 7, 32bit is recommended.

# **Step 1 - Configuration Settings in Parallels Desktop 7**

Find below recommended configuration settings.

The windows applications folder can be be displayed in the MAC Dock. You can start CTI Data Connector for Salesforce with all installed applications by clicking on the icon



Display Windows Application Folder in Dock

# Step 2 - Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce in the Virtual Machine

Within Windows 7, open the file Explorer (right mouse click, Windows Explorer)

First, install the TAPI (TSP) from driver in the virtual machine. Then install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

- Single User Installation 86
- Network Installation 106

Step 3 - Advice how to use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce in combination with the virtual machine

- The virtual machine should be used in **coherence mode**. Windows is then 'invisible' andCTI Data Connector for Salesforce works like a normal MAC OS X application. To change to coherence mode **Choose Enter Coherence** from the virtual machine **View menu**
- During the first program start, the icon of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce appears in the dock. With right mouse click, **Options, Keep in Dock**, the icon is kept in the doc. IN the future, you can start CTI Data Connector for Salesforce by clicking on the icon



- The Browser (see <u>supported Browsers</u> [147]) must be started from the virtual machine. You can also add the Internet Explorer to the dock (right mouse click, **Options, Keep in Dock)**. You have to use this Browser in combination with salesforce
- All options of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce with <u>left or right mouse</u> <sup>23</sup> click are **not** available. The configuration wizard has to be started using the windows application



## Step 4 - Install on other workstations

The virtual machine can be used on other workstations. You have to observe the license agreement of Parallels and Windows.



# 9 Part II - Enhanced Features

These lessons explain CTI Data Connector for Salesforce features. It is mainly for administrators. After completing them, you will have experience with these tasks:

- License Information chapter Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License
- How TOs and FAQ 176
- Distribute Client Setup

•

# 9.1 Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License

CTI Data Connector for Salesforce comes with an own licence file - **cdcsfe.lic**. The licence is a licence **PER PC / COMPUTER**. Copy Protection is turned on after activation. We recommend backing up the licence file and all <u>Activation Keys</u> [78] you got.

- You have to activate the product before you can use it without the restrictions of the demo version [164] see How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce [134]
- Find out more about your licence in the chapter Show License Information 77
- See License Agreement 172 for details of usage.

## See also

Demoversion Browse your License Information Apply Activation Key 78 Deactivate a License 167

License Agreement 172

## 9.1.1 Demoversion

The Demoversion has the following restrictions:

• Limited by days - normally 30 days

All other parts of the application are fully functional

#### 9.1.2 Show License Information

To display the license information, either

• right click on the icon in the taskbar 23 - select Show License Information

or

• select within the Control Centre 25, Menu Extras, Show License Information

This will open the Licence Viewer where you can view the licenses you have acquired, the number of users/computers who can use the licence and whether a licence has a time limitation or not.

## **Number of licenses**

The folder *CTI License* displays the maximum number of licenses and the number of licenses which are available. If you click on the + sign, all computers using a license will be displayed. See <u>Deactivate a License</u> how to deactivate one single computer.

- Number of Computers / PCs which have a license
- Demoversion 164 if omitted it is a full version or time-limited full version
- Valid until (time limitation) if omitted it is a non time-limited version
- Web Activation 134 either done or required

## **Update Subscription**

The update subscription entitles you to install the latest updates as long as it has not expired. See chapter software update 11 about how to download updates.

- Available / Not available
- Time limitation the date when the update subscription expires

## **Release Number**

• Internal release information

💾 License Viewer	- • •
Manufacturer:	
Company: Smart Business Inc	
Modules	
ETI License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))	
Activation Keys	
MIRAGE-02-01	
TI Client Interface (available)	
Webdial (available)	
Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008)	
Release (24000)	
±	
1	
Deactivate Activation Key Refresh Info Options	Close

## 9.1.3 Apply Activation Key

An Activation Key is used to modify the license information (e.g. increase number of licenses). All Activation Keys are unique and have the same format like:

#### fZDdq-aDC95-e54DA-atR82-DL82k-NfC4v

There are 6 blocks each with 5 characters. The blocks are separated by a hyphen for better readability.

If you got an Activation Key via E-Mail or Fax, you can enter the key within the screen <u>Show License Information</u> 77.

- Start screen Show License Information 77
- Select button Activation Key
- Paste the key from the clipboard with CTRL+V

It is possible to validate the Activation Key online. In this case an Internet connection is necessary.

💾 License Viewer		
Manufacturer: Company: Smart Business Inc GInstallation Codes - Copy protection activated(2)		
Deactivate Activation Key	Refresh Info Option	s <u>Q</u> lose

## 9.1.4 Deactivate a PC within a network

If a PC does not further need the license of CTI Data Connector for Salesforce, its license can be deactivated. The license can then be used by another PC.

- Start screen Show License Information 77
- Click on the + sign before CTI License, then select the PC the license of which should be deactivated
- Press the button *Deactivate*. The name of the PC will be displayed in brackets e.g. (PC-2)

Manufacturer: Company: Smart Business Inc Derived Installation Codes - Copy protection activated(2) Modules CTI License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done)) CTI License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done)) CTI Client Interface (available) CTI Client Interface (available) CTI Client Interface (available) Webdial (available) Veddate Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008) Release (24000) CTI System
Installation Codes - Copy protection activated(2)     Modules     CTI License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))     Activation Keys     MIRAGE-03-01     MIRAGE-02-01     CTI Client Interface (available)     Mumber of Database Profiles (4)     Webdial (available)     Webdial (available)     Webdial (available)     Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008)     Release (24000)
Modules  CTL License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL Clense (PC) (Number of License is valid until: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL Clent Interface (available)  CTL Clent Interface (
Modules  CTL License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL License (PC) (Number of licenses per Computer: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL Clense (PC) (Number of License is valid until: 5 (thereof 3 are available), Activation (done))  CTL Clent Interface (available)  CTL Clent Interface (
Activation Keys     Activation Keys     MIRAGE-03-01     MIRAGE-03-01     Of CTI Client Interface (available)     Mumber of Database Profiles (4)     Webdial (available)     Webdial (available)     Veddial (available)     Release (24000)
Activation Keys     Activation Keys     MIRAGE-03-01     MIRAGE-03-01     Of CTI Client Interface (available)     Mumber of Database Profiles (4)     Webdial (available)     Webdial (available)     Veddial (available)     Release (24000)
IIRAGE-03-01         MIRAGE-02-01         CTI Client Interface (available)         INumber of Database Profiles (4)         XIL Interface (available)         Webdial (available)         Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008)         Release (24000)
TI Client Interface (available)         Image: Number of Database Profiles (4)
Image: Second
Webdial (available)         Webdial (available)         Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008)         Release (24000)
- 🤯 Webdial (available) - 🔯 Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008) - 📶 Release (24000)
- 🔯 Update Subscription (available, License is valid until: 25.04.2008) - 📶 Release (24000)
E-10 System
Deactivate Activation Key Refresh Info Options Close
Deactivate         Activation Key         Refresh         Info         Options         Close

# **Reactivate a license**

The license can be activated again by selecting the deactivated PC and then pressing the button *Activate*.



#### 9.1.5 Transfer license / Move to a new computer

You can move the license to a **new computer** (single user installation) or **new server** (network installation). The license will be deactivated on the current computer / server. The Serial Number can then be used again on another computer / server to activate the product.

This process requires an **online connection**. You only can transfer a license for a full version (no demo version).

#### Note

The functionality is available within a **network installation** only if the application is started with cdcsfe **-admin** to prevent, that the license is transferred accidentally. A single PC within a network can be always deactivated without an online connection - see <u>Deactivate</u> a PC within a network 167.

**Step 1 - Show License Viewer** 

Blue icon , right mouse click - Show License Information

**Step 2 - Transfer License** 

Click on the button Transfer License



Button - Transfer License

Thereafter an information is displayed, that the license will be deactivated



Screen - License Deactivation

# Step 3 - Activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce on a new computer

You can reuse the Serial Number on a new computer to activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce



- After the license was deactivated, you can reactivate it during the next program start as long as the Serial Number was not used on another computer
- The license can be transferred multiple times between computers Example: Transfer license from PC A to PC B. Then deactivate on PC B and activate again on PC A

#### 9.1.6 License Agreement

PERPETUAL END USER LICENCE AGREEMENT

NOTICE TO ALL USERS: CAREFULLY READ THE FOLLOWING LEGAL AGREEMENT ('AGREEMENT'), FOR THE LICENCE OF SPECIFIED SOFTWARE ('SOFTWARE') BY Mirage Computer Systems GmbH ('Mirage Computer Systems GmbH'). BY CLICKING THE ACCEPT BUTTON OR INSTALLING THE SOFTWARE, YOU (EITHER AN INDIVIDUAL OR A SINGLE ENTITY) CONSENT TO BE BOUND BY AND BECOME A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO ALL OF THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, CLICK THE BUTTON THAT INDICATES THAT YOU DO NOT ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT AND DO NOT INSTALL THE SOFTWARE.(IF APPLICABLE, YOU MAY RETURN THE PRODUCT TO THE PLACE OF PURCHASE FOR A FULL REFUND.)

1. LICENCE Grant. Subject to the payment of the applicable LICENCE fees, and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Mirage Computer Systems GmbH hereby grants to you a non-exclusive, non-transferable right to use one copy of the specified version of the Software and the accompanying documentation (the 'Documentation'). You may install one copy of the Software on one computer, workstation, personal digital assistant, pager, 'smart phone' or other electronic device for which the Software was designed (each, a 'Client Device'). If the Software is LICENSED as a suite or bundle with more than one specified Software product, this LICENSE applies to all such specified Software products, subject to any restrictions or usage terms specified on the applicable price list or product packaging that apply to any of such Software products individually.

a. Use. The Software is LICENSED as a single product; it may not be used on more than one Client Device or by more than one user at a time, except as set forth in this Section 1. The Software is 'in use' on a Client Device when it is loaded into the temporary memory (i.e., random-access memory or RAM) or installed into the permanent memory (e.g., hard disk, CD-ROM, or other storage device) of that Client Device. This LICENSE authorizes you to make one copy of the Software solely for backup or archival purposes, provided that the copy you make contains all of the Software's proprietary notices.

b. Server-Mode. You may use the Software on a Client Device as a server ('Server') within a multi-user or networked environment ('Server-Mode') only if such use is permitted in the applicable price list or product packaging for the Software. A separate LICENSE is required for each Client Device or 'seat' that may connect to the Server at any time, regardless of whether such LICENSED Client Devices or seats are concurrently connected to, accessing or using the Software. Use of software or hardware that reduces the number of Client Devices or seats directly accessing or utilizing the Software (e.g., 'multiplexing' or 'pooling' software or hardware) does not reduce the number of LICENSES required (i.e., the required number of LICENSES would equal the number of distinct inputs to the multiplexing or pooling software or hardware 'front end'). If the number of Client Devices or seats that can connect to the Software can exceed the number of LICENSES you have obtained, then you must have a reasonable mechanism in place to ensure that your use of the Software does not exceed the use limits specified for the LICENSES you have obtained. This LICENSE authorizes you to make or download one copy of the Documentation for each Client Device or seat that is LICENSED, provided that each such copy contains all of the Documentation's proprietary notices.

172

c. Volume LICENSES. If the Software is LICENSED with volume LICENSE terms specified in the applicable price list or product packaging for the Software, you may make, use and install as many additional copies of the Software on the number of Client Devices as the volume LICENSE authorizes. You must have a reasonable mechanism in place to ensure that the number of Client Devices on which the Software has been installed does not exceed the number of LICENSES you have obtained. This LICENSE authorizes you to make or download one copy of the Documentation for each additional copy authorized by the volume LICENSE, provided that each such copy contains all of the Documentation's proprietary notices.

2. Term. This Agreement is effective for an unlimited duration unless and until earlier terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement will terminate automatically if you fail to comply with any of the limitations or other requirements described herein. Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, you must destroy all copies of the Software and the Documentation.

3. Updates. For the time period specified in the applicable price list or product packaging for the Software, you are entitled to download revisions or updates to the Software when and as Mirage Computer Systems GmbH publishes them via its electronic bulletin board system, website or through other online services. For a period of thirty (30) days from the date of the of original purchase of the Software, you are entitled to download one(1) revision or upgrade to the Software when and as Mirage Computer Systems GmbH publishes it via its electronic bulletin board system, website or through other online services. After the specified time period, you have no further rights to receive any revisions or upgrades without purchase of a new LICENSE to the Software.

4. Ownership Rights. The Software is protected by German copyright laws and international treaty provisions. Mirage Computer Systems GmbH and its suppliers own and retain all right, title and interest in and to the Software, including all copyrights, patents, trade secret rights, trademarks and other intellectual property rights therein. Your possession, installation, or use of the Software does not transfer to you any title to the intellectual property in the Software, and you will not acquire any rights to the Software except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. All copies of the Software and Documentation made hereunder must contain the same proprietary notices that appear on and in the Software and Documentation.

5. Restrictions. You may not sell, lease, LICENSE, rent, loan or otherwise transfer, with or without consideration, rent, lease, loan or resell the Software. Mirage Computer Systems GmbH updates its Software frequently and performance data for its Software change. Before conducting benchmark tests regarding this Software, contact Mirage Computer Systems GmbH to verify that you possess the correct Software for the test and the then current version and edition of the Software. Benchmark tests of former, outdated or inappropriate versions or editions of the Software may yield results that are not reflective of the performance of the current version or edition of the Software may yield results that on the permit any third party (other than third parties under contract with you which contains nondisclosure obligations no less restrictive than those set forth herein) to use the LICENSED Program in any form and shall use all reasonable efforts to ensure that no improper or unauthorized use of the LICENSED Program is made. You may not permit third parties to benefit from the use or functionality of the Software via a timesharing,

service bureau or other arrangement, except to the extent such use is specified in the applicable price list, purchase order, or product packaging for the Software. You may not transfer any of the rights granted to you under this Agreement. You may not reverse engineer, decompile, or disassemble the Software, except to the extent the foregoing restriction is expressly prohibited by applicable law. You may not modify, or create derivative works based upon, the Software in whole or in part. You may not copy the Software or Documentation except as expressly permitted in Section 1 above. You may not remove any proprietary notices or labels on the Software. All rights not expressly set forth hereunder are reserved by Mirage Computer Systems GmbH .

6. Warranty and Disclaimer.

a. Limited Warranty. Mirage Computer Systems GmbH warrants that for sixty (60) days from the date of original purchase the media (e.g., diskettes) on which the Software is contained will be free from defects in materials and workmanship.

b. Customer Remedies. Mirage Computer Systems GmbH ' and its suppliers' entire liability and your exclusive remedy for any breach of the foregoing warranty shall be, at Mirage Computer Systems GmbH 's option, either (i) return of the purchase price paid for the LICENSE, if any, or (ii) replacement of the defective media in which the Software is contained. You must return the defective media to Mirage Computer Systems GmbH at your expense with a copy of your receipt. This limited warranty is void if the defect has resulted from accident, abuse, or misapplication. Any replacement media will be warranted for the remainder of the original warranty period. Outside the United States, this remedy is not available to the extent Mirage Computer Systems GmbH is subject to restrictions under United States export control laws and regulations.

c. Warranty Disclaimer. Except for the limited warranty set forth herein, THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED 'AS IS.' TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, Mirage Computer Systems GmbH DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NONINFRINGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE AND THE ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTATION. YOU ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR SELECTING THE SOFTWARE TO ACHIEVE YOUR INTENDED RESULTS, AND FOR THE INSTALLATION OF, USE OF, AND RESULTS OBTAINED FROM THE SOFTWARE. WITHOUT LIMITING THE FOREGOING PROVISIONS, Mirage Computer Systems GmbH MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL BE ERROR-FREE OR FREE FROM INTERRUPTIONS OR OTHER FAILURES OR THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS.

7. Limitation of Liability. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES AND UNDER NO LEGAL THEORY, WHETHER IN TORT, CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL Mirage Computer Systems GmbH OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE TO YOU OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON FOR ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PURELY FINANCIAL DAMAGES OF ANY CHARACTER INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF GOODWILL, WORK STOPPAGE, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, OR FOR ANY AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES OR LOSSES. IN NO EVENT WILL Mirage Computer Systems GmbH BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES IN EXCESS OF THE LIST PRICE Mirage Computer Systems GmbH CHARGES FOR A LICENSE TO THE SOFTWARE, EVEN IF Mirage Computer Systems GmbH SHALL HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO LIABILITY FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY TO THE EXTENT THAT APPLICABLE LAW PROHIBITS SUCH LIMITATION.

8. United States Government. The Software and accompanying Documentation are deemed to be 'commercial computer software' and' commercial computer software documentation,' respectively, pursuant to DFAR Section 227.7202 and FAR Section 12.212, as applicable. Any use, modification, reproduction, release, performance, display or disclosure of the Software and accompanying Documentation by the United States Government shall be governed solely by the terms of this Agreement and shall be prohibited except to the extent expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement.

9. Export Controls. You have been advised that the Software and Documentation (the 'Products') are subject to the U.S. Export Administration Regulations. You shall not export, import or transfer Products contrary to U.S. or other applicable laws, whether directly or indirectly, and will not cause, approve or otherwise facilitate others such as agents or any third parties in doing so. You represent and agree that neither the United States Bureau of Export Administration nor any other federal agency has suspended, revoked or denied your export privileges. You agree not to use or transfer the Products for end use relating to any nuclear, chemical or biological weapons, or missile technology unless authorized by the U.S. Government by regulation or specific LICENSE. Additionally, you acknowledge that the Products are subject to export control regulations in the European Union and You hereby declare and agree that the Products will not be used for any other purpose than civil (non-military) purposes. The parties agree to cooperate with each other with respect to any application for any required LICENSES and approvals, however, You acknowledge it is Your ultimate responsibility to comply with any and all export and import laws and that Mirage Computer Systems GmbH has no further responsibility after the initial sale to You within the original country of sale.

10. High Risk Activities. The Software is not fault-tolerant and is not designed or intended for use in hazardous environments requiring fail-safe performance, including without limitation, in the operation of nuclear facilities, aircraft navigation or communication systems, air traffic control, weapons systems, direct life-support machines, or any other application in which the failure of the Software could lead directly to death, personal injury, or severe physical or property damage (collectively, 'High Risk Activities'). Mirage Computer Systems GmbH expressly disclaims any express or implied warranty of fitness for High Risk Activities.

11.Miscellaneous. This Agreement is governed by the laws of Germany, without reference to conflict of laws principles. The application of the United Nations Convention of Contracts for the International Sale of Goods is expressly excluded. This Agreement sets forth all rights for the user of the Software and is the entire agreement between the parties. Mirage Computer Systems GmbH reserves the right to periodically audit you to ensure that you are not using any Software in violation of this Agreement. During your standard business hours and upon prior written notice, Mirage Computer Systems GmbH may visit you and you will make available to Mirage Computer Systems GmbH or its representatives any records pertaining to the Software to Mirage Computer Systems GmbH . The cost of any requested audit will be solely borne by Mirage Computer Systems Systems GmbH , unless such audit discloses an underpayment or amount due to Mirage

Computer Systems GmbH in excess of five percent (5%) of the initial LICENSE fee for the Software or you are using the Software in an unauthorized manner, in which case you shall pay the cost of the audit. This Agreement supersedes any other communications with respect to the Software and Documentation. This Agreement may not be modified except by a written addendum issued by a duly authorized representative of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH . No provision hereof shall be deemed waived unless such waiver shall be in writing and signed by Mirage Computer Systems GmbH or a duly authorized representative of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH or a duly authorized representative of Mirage Computer Systems GmbH . If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. The parties confirm that it is their wish that this Agreement has been written in the English language only.

12.Mirage Computer Systems GmbH CUSTOMER CONTACT. If you have any questions concerning these terms and conditions, or if you would like to contact Mirage Computer Systems GmbH for any other reason, please E-Mail: Support@mirage-systems.de. You will find our internet web- site at www.cti-data-connector.com

Date: October 2010 LA-DE-01082003

# 9.2 How TOs and FAQ

This chapter introduces Frequently Asked Questions as well as tips and tricks.

#### 9.2.1 How can I print this Tutorial

## **Print this tutorial**

The Online Tutorial is also available as a PDF document.

You can print this tutorial - click on the link to download PDF file

#### 9.2.2 How do I activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce?

During the trial period, the activation screen appears with each start of the program. You need a Serial Number for activating the product - see Buy Serial Number

You do not have to reinstall the version and you can directly activate it if:

- You have installed the trial version as a single user version and you bought a single user version
- You have installed the trial version as a network version and you bought a network version

and

• The version you have installed has the same version number like the version you bought - see How can I check my version number?

Always activate the software on a workstation and never on the server.

# What happens during activation?

The activation process will connect the licence to the PC or Server. **Use the Serial Number only on the PC / Server you want to use CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. The Serial Number cannot be used twice.** After the activation is done, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce will run only on this PC / Server. Your hardware data, Serial Number, name, e-mail address and some program-specific data is transferred to our activation center. No other data stored on your PC will be transmitted.

The activation process can be done from any PC, even if you have a network version (starting the activation process on the server is not possible)

# **Select Activation Method**

On the first screen select: *I have a Serial Number and I want to activate CTI Data Connector for Salesforce*. This will give you a selection how to activate the product. The Online Activation is the recommended activation method and should be used if an Internet connection is available. <u>E-Mail Activation</u> can be used in case the online activation is blocked.

(note: the screen you see could be slightly different)



Message - Serial Number required

If you get the message, that a Serial Number is required, press the button *Next* and select between <u>online</u> and <u>e-mail activation</u>. A Serial Number is required. Without a Serial Number the application can only be terminated using the *End* button.

1	79	

Activation of CTI			×
No. and any	Thank yo	ou for your into	erest in this product
	Serial Number req	uired	
Notice: This is the complete application. You don't have to download or install it again.	To further use this product you have to activate it by entering a Serial Number.		
	You don't have a Serial Number?		
	Bu	y a Serial Number	
0		Next	End
Start Video Tutorial for p	product Activation		
ee also			

Buy Serial Number 137 Online Activation 138 E-Mail Activation 138 Reinstall Software 143 Your CTI Data Connector for Salesforce License 164

# 9.2.3 System Requirements - TAPI driver

# **Telephone System**

To communicate with a phone system, either a CTI server (Third Party Solution) or the

connection of the phone set to the PC (First Party Solution) is supported. For both systems a **TAPI driver 2.x (also referred to as TSP)** is mandatory. See details for TAPI - Where do I find the TAPI driver?

- VOIP systems like Cisco Call Manager, Avaya, Swyx or Innovaphone normally have a TAPI driver included.
- For Asterisk there are several vendors who offer a TAPI driver e.g. <u>http://www.xtelsio.com</u> or <u>http://activa.sourceforge.net</u>.
- If your VOIP / Cloud PBX system does not comes with a TAPI driver, try Global IP Telecommunications Ltd (Ninja Pro) <u>www.globalipphones.com</u>. This software works with all SIP compatible phone systems.
- Traditional PBX systems like Siemens or Alcatel often require an additional TAPI server.
- ISDN phones without a PBX are available with an inbuilt TAPI driver.
- If you are using a modem, we strongly recommend switching to a phone set connected to the PC (via USB/serial), because the TAPI drivers of modems often do offer only basic functions or do not function at all.

Please check firstly with your phone vendor about which solution meets your requirements and how you can install and configure the TAPI driver. You can contact Support@mirage-systems.de if you do have the TAPI driver installed and CTI Data Connector for Salesforce has problems with making an outgoing call or receiving incoming calls.

Some TAPI drivers do not work on **64bit operating** systems. You can use a virtual machine with 32bit operating system. An example, how this is working is explained for  $\underline{MAC \ OS \ X.}$  For Windows Vista or Windows 7 64bit, the same virtual machines can be used.

## **Operating System**

Windows XP SP3 to Windows 7 (32bit and 64 bit) is supported

• .NET 3.5 is required for the salesforce call center adapter 4

## **Browser Support**

The following list of browsers are supported by salesforce.com for the call center adapter 4.0:

#### Minimum system requirements

- IE8 +
- Firefox 3.5 +
- Chrome 10 +
- Safari 4+

While the adapter supports IE8 and Firefox 3.5 performance is significantly improved in browsers like
- IE9
- Firefox 5 and 6
- Chrome 13
- Safari 5

It is recommended that the call center adapter 4.0 is used with browsers in the above list.

The limitations are due to the salesforce call center adapter 4.0. Check with the next salesforce release if new Browser versions are supported.

#### Internet Explorer warning message

If you are running Internet Explorer and receive warnings which say "*Do you want to view* only the webpage content that was delivered securely when using the browser" - see Warning mixed content

#### Salesforce

The Salesforce *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* or *Developer Edition* is required for the call center functionality. If you are using the *Team Edition*, contact Support@mirage-systems.de for an alternative solution.

#### See also

<u>Configure</u> 54 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Where do I find the TAPI driver?

#### 9.2.4 Where do I find the TAPI driver?

**Telephony Application Programming Interface (TAPI)** is a programming interface for CTI (computer telephony integration) applications.

Applications using TAPI need a **TAPI driver (also referred to as TSP)**. This TAPI driver has to be delivered by the **phone manufacturer**. As this driver is always device-dependent, it is not possible to use a generic driver which is supplied with the operating

system. The driver often has the name of the manufacturer or the phone system, sometimes in combination with the extension number.

To check whether a TAPI driver is installed, do the following (Instructions for Windows XP).

- Start, Control Panel
- Phone and Modem options
- TAB advanced



There are a lot of drivers which come with Windows like *NDIS Proxy TAPI Service Provider*. Search for a driver with the name of the **PBX, PBX vendor or your direct line**. If this driver is missing, you probably do not have the correct TAPI driver for your PBX.

If your TAPI driver is not listed here see: <u>I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration</u> wizard

#### See also

System Requirements TAPI driver Configure 541 the TAPI driver within CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

#### 9.2.5 I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration wizard

If you cannot select the TAPI driver in the <u>configuration wizard</u> (it does not appear in the list), then check:

#### Step 1: Phone and Modem options

Is the TAPI driver visible in <u>Phone and Modem options</u> Typically you see either the name of the PBX or your extension number.

If the TAPI driver is not visible here, install it again and reboot the system.

If the TAPI driver is listed here, continue with step 2

#### Step 2: Configure the TAPI driver

Some TAPI drivers have to be configured, e.g. you have to add the IP address where to find the PBX or add a user name and password. This is done in <u>Phone and Modem</u> options **150**. Select your driver and click on the button: *Configure*.

Check again if the TAPI driver can be selected in the <u>configuration wizard</u> [54]

If it is still missing, continue with step 3

#### Step 3: Start telephony service

If you are running windows 7, then some TAPI drivers require the telephony service.

Go to Administrative Tools in the Control Panel and click Services

Change the *startup type* of the Telephony service to **automatic** and reboot the system. If the TAPI driver is still not visible in the configuration wizard, there is a setup problem with the TAPI driver. Contact the PBX vendor

184	CTI Data Connector 4.0
-----	------------------------

Local) O Services (Local)						
avast! Web Scanner	Name	Description	Status	Startup Type	Log On As	
Stop the service Restart the service	SNMP Trap Software Protection			Manual Automatic (D	Local Service Network S	
	SPP Notification S SSDP Discovery	Provides So Discovers n	Started	Manual Manual	Local Service Local Service	
Description: Implements web (HTTP) scanning fo avast! antivirus.	Storage Service	Enforces gr		Manual Manual	Local Syste Local Syste	
	🔍 Superfetch 🦓 System Event Noti	Maintains a Monitors sy	Started Started	Automatic Automatic	Local Syste Local Syste	
	Tablet PC Input Se Task Scheduler	Enables Tab Enables a us	Started	Manual Automatic	Local Syste Local Syste	
	TCP/IP NetBIOS H	Provides su	Started	Automatic	Local Service	
	Telephony Themes	Provides Tel	Started	Automatic Automatic	Network S Local Syste	
	Thread Ordering S		Starteu	Manual	Local Service	
	TPM Base Services			Manual	Local Service	
	UPnP Device Host	Allows UPn		Manual	Local Service	
	User Profile Service		Started	Automatic	Local Syste	
	Q Virtual Disk	Provides m	Started	Manual	Local Syste	
	Volume Shadow C			Manual	Local Syste	
	WebClient	Enables Win		Manual	Local Service	
	Windows Activati			Manual	Local Syste	
	Windows Audio	Manages au	Started	Automatic	Local Service	
	Windows Audio E			Automatic	Local Syste	
	Windows Backup	Provides Wi		Manual	Local Syste	
	Windows Biometri			Manual	Local Syste	
	Windows CardSpa			Manual	Local Syste	
	Windows Color Sy			Manual	Local Service	

#### 9.2.6 Minimum Configuration Settings

During installation, the <u>Configuration Wizard</u> was already started. You can define a lot of individual configuration settings there. The following settings **have to be defined** to guarantee a basic functionality.

- <u>TAPI device driver</u> [54] it is delivered by the telephone manufacturer. See also: <u>System</u> requirements <u>TAPI driver</u> [148]. If you don't have a TAPI driver yet, you can use the <u>Telephone Simulator</u> [27] for testing.
- Button <u>Dialing Rules</u> 70 configures country settings and area code. See also special configuration for US / Canada 71

Just by setting this minimum configuration you will be able to make outgoing calls and to identify incoming calls. The Configuration Wizard can be started any time by **right** click on the icon 23, option Configuration Wizard 51.

	Part II - Enhanced Feature
CTI Data Connector for Salesforce Configuration Wiza	ird (X
Here you can configure CTI Data Connector for Salesforce to obta incoming calls. After the installation, individual settings can be dor Wizard. Choose the button Help to learn more about the configura	ne with the Configuration
Telephony service provider/TAPI device driver:	
< Telephone Simulator >	
Dialing Rules	
	xt > Einish
	xt > <u>F</u> inish

#### 9.2.7 Troubleshooting - Outgoing calls

If outgoing calls do not always or never work, then first perform the following checks:

- Errors Call Center Adapter 153
- I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration wizard
- Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls 31
- Outgoing call never possible
- Outgoing call dials wrong number / prefix 187
- Outgoing call Dial with Hyperlink not working
- Outgoing call Postfix like # necessary

- Outgoing call problem with Internal Number
- Outgoing call Hotkey is not working

If the problem cannot be located, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can log all events coming from the TAPI driver. Often wrong implementations of the TAPI driver or functions not implemented like call transferring are causing problems. Our support team can analyze the log file.

To send us a log file - see How do I send a log file?

#### 9.2.7.1 Necessary configuration settings for outgoing calls

Below find a list of configuration settings which have an impact on outgoing calls. If outgoing calls are not working, check these settings and also check <u>Troubleshooting</u> - <u>Outgoing calls</u> [185].

#### **Configuration Settings**

- Select correct TAPI driver 54
- <u>PBX Configuration</u> [69] especially dial tone digits for external calls
- Dialing Rules 70 for US / Canada check additional settings 71
- TAPI Configuration Prefix Outgoing Calls 60
- TAPI Configuration Provider Postfix 61
- TAPI Configuration Ignore Fake Number 61
- Dial via Hotkey 34 configure 56 Hotkey and activate this option 53
- <u>Dial within Browser</u> [35] <u>activate this option</u> [53]
- Dial with a Hyperlink 2011 activate this option 53

If internal numbers are not dialled correct, check:

- TAPI Configuration Prefix internal number 61
- Minimum length 70 of phone number indicating an external call

#### 9.2.7.2 Outgoing Call - never possible

If you are not able to make an outgoing call, perform the following checks:

- Start the Configuration Wizard 51
- Browse to the page where you can select the <u>TAPI driver</u> [54] and select the correct TAPI driver. See also <u>Where do I find the TAPI driver?</u> [150]
- Press button Finish
- Select Quick dialing
- Type in a phone number an select Dial

If the number is dialed but with a **wrong prefix** (a wrong number is placed in front or numbers are missing), check solution Outgoing Call - wrong Prefix 187

If dialing works with Quick dialing but you can not dial with a Hotkey 34, change the Hotkey 56 within the Configuration Wizard.

If outgoing calls are still not working, make a test with Windows Phone Dialer. Select in Windows: *Start, Run*: **Dialer.exe** 

₽ See more results	
dialer.exe	× Shut down ►
🚳 🔚 🖸	🙆 🖉 👬 S

You can select and configure the TAPI driver in this application and make a phone call.

If outgoing calls are not working with the Phone Dialer, the reason for the problem is the TAPI driver. Contact your phone vendor.

If outgoing calls are working with the Phone Dialer, send us a log file 1991.

#### 9.2.7.3 Outgoing Call - wrong Prefix

If outgoing calls are working, but the **prefix is wrong** (a wrong number is placed in front or numbers are missing) **or the number has a wrong format**, perform the following checks:

- Start the Configuration Wizard 51
- Browse to the page <u>PBX Configuration</u>
- Select button dialing Rules 70.
- Select your location and press Edit
- The Country/Region setting is important. Select your **country** and enter the Area code **without** any prefix like 0 or 1
- DO NOT use dialing rules they are only supported for US / Canada see dialing Rules for US / Canada 71
- Check the <u>Dial tone digits for external calls</u> 70. This is the number to get an outside line, normally 0 or 9.
- Enter the Minimum length of phone number indicating an external call [69]. If the maximum INTERNAL phone number has a length of 3 digits, you have to enter 4 here
- Activate the Desktop Notification for **outgoing** calls to get each call signaled
- Press button *Finish*
- Select Quick dialing
- Type in a phone number an select Dial

If the number is dialed correctly but **no caller data is displayed**, try to cut a prefix for an outside line, e.g. 9 or 0. This can be configured within Expert Settings, <u>TAPI configuration</u>

60). Do also check the option <u>Ignore Fake Numbers</u> िगे.

If the number is still wrong, try other settings.

If dialing still does not work, send us a log file

New Lycation	8 <b>X</b>
General Area Code Rules Calling Card	
Location name:	
Specify the location from which you will be dialing.	
Country/region: A	rea code:
United States 👻	425
Dialing rules	
When dialing from this location, use the following rules:	
To access an outside line for local calls, dial:	
To access an outside line for long-distance calls, dial:	
Use this carrier code to make long-distance calls:	
Use this carrier code to make international calls:	
To disable call waiting, dial:	Y
Dial using:      Tone      Pulse	
OK Cancel	Apply

#### 9.2.7.4 Outgoing Call - Dial with Hyperlink not working

Dialing with an hyperlink is supported in all Browsers. You have to activate this function within the Configuration Wizard - see <u>Configure dial options for Browsers</u> 57]. Make sure that you have disabled the feature in Skype. See also: *Expert Settings, Miscellaneous Settings*, Application to dial with Hyperlink 67].

To dial via an hyperlink in a Browser based application, just insert the following command in your application:

<a href="callto://phonenumber">Click to Dial</a>

where phonenumber has to be replaced with the real phone number like

<a href="callto://+4970054885342">Click to Dial</a>

#### 9.2.7.5 Outgoing Call - Postfix like # necessary

If a character like # has to be added **after** each phone number (postfix), configure this option in Expert Settings, <u>TAPI Driver</u>.

#### 9.2.7.6 Outgoing Call - problem with Internal Number

Check the following configuration settings:

- <u>Minimum length of phone number indication an external call</u> [69] this is the main configuration setting to determine if a call is internal or external
- Activate the Desktop Notification window for **outgoing** calls to get each call signaled
- The configuration option: <u>Don't show internal calls</u> [73] must be **unchecked** to trace the call in the Desktop Notification window
- If the internal number is e.g. signaled with 12 but the number stored in the database is 07342/7383-12, see in <u>Prefix for Internal Numbers</u> and area code

#### 9.2.7.7 Outgoing Call - Hotkey is not working

If you try to dial with a <u>Hotkey</u> [34], and nothing happens, perform the following checks:

Firstly check if you can dial with the Quick dialing option. If this is also not possible (the phone does not dial anything), check Outgoing Call - never possible

If the phone dials, the Hotkey settings have to be modified:

- Try a Hotkey which is not used like CTRL+SHIFT+F10 change the Hotkey here 56
- Especially in case the Hotkey is sometimes working and sometimes not, increase the Clipboard waiting time in increments of 10 change the waiting time here

#### 9.2.8 Troubleshooting - Incoming calls

If incoming calls do not always or never work, firstly perform the following checks:

- Errors Call Center Adapter 153
- I cannot select my TAPI driver in the configuration wizard
- Necessary configuration settings for caller identification 40
- Incoming call never signalled
- Incoming call wrong prefix [191]
- Incoming call Caller Identification not working
- Incoming call use address data stored in PBX
- Incoming call problem with Internal Number

If the problem cannot be located, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can log all events

coming from the TAPI driver. Often wrong implementations of the TAPI driver or functions not implemented like call transferring are causing problems. Our support team can analyze the log file.

To send us a log file - see How do I send a log file?

#### 9.2.8.1 Necessary configuration settings for caller identification

Below is a list of configuration settings which have an impact on the caller identification. If the caller identification is not working, check these settings and also check <u>Troubleshooting - Incoming calls</u>

Address information used for caller identification Salesforce Lead, Account, Contact

• Addresses stored in the <u>PBX system</u> <sup>75</sup>

#### **Configuration Settings**

- Select correct TAPI driver
- Configuration Caller Identification 73
- TAPI Configuration truncate incoming phone number at
- TAPI Configuration Prefix incoming call 60
- TAPI Configuration Don't signal updated phone number during a call 62

If internal numbers are not identified correct, check:

- TAPI Configuration Prefix internal number 61
- <u>Minimum length</u> 70 of phone number indicating an external call

#### 9.2.8.2 Incoming Call - never signalled

If an incoming call is **never** signalled, perform the following checks:

- Start the Configuration Wizard 51
- Browse to the page where you can select the <u>TAPI driver</u> [54] and select the correct TAPI driver. See also <u>Where do I find the TAPI driver?</u> [150]
- Activate the Desktop Notification window for incoming calls to get each call signaled
- Press button Finish
- Call with your mobile phone and make sure that you **do not suppress the phone number** from your mobile

If the number is signalled but with a **wrong prefix**, check the solution <u>Incoming Call -</u> wrong Prefix

If incoming calls still do not work, send us a log file 1991.

#### See also

Incoming call - wrong address information is displayed

#### 9.2.8.3 Incoming Call - wrong Prefix

If the number of an incoming call is signaled but with a wrong prefix (e.g. **00**70054885342), try to cut a prefix e.g. 9 or 0. If the leading 0 is missing (e.g. 70054885342), add 0 for incoming calls.

This can be configured within Expert Settings, <u>TAPI configuration</u> [60].

#### 9.2.8.4 Incoming Call - Caller Identification not working

If the number of an incoming call is signaled, but the caller can not be identified, firstly perform the following checks:

- If you get the wrong caller signalled, change the value for <u>Caller Identification truncate</u> <u>number of digits</u> 73 to a value between 1 to 3
- Make sure that the number is stored in your database or MS-Outlook
- If you are using MS-Outlook / Exchange, make sure you have the right Outlook folder selected
- If you are using a single user installation, firstly perform Format Phone Numbers 79
- If you have your address information stored in the PBX, check Incoming Call use address data from PBX [191]
- If you are using a network installation, either test with a number stored in MS-Outlook or have the administrator perform the <u>synchronization of the the phone numbers on the</u> <u>server</u>
- If the number is signaled with a wrong prefix (e.g. **00**70054885342), check Incoming Call wrong Prefix
- If the number is signaled with additional characters (e.g. <u>070054885342@xy.com</u>), truncate the incoming phone number at the @ sign - check Expert Settings, <u>TAPI</u> <u>Configuration</u>
- If only internal calls are not identified, check <u>Incoming Call problem with Internal</u> Number 192

#### 9.2.8.5 Incoming Call - use address data stored in PBX

If the address data is stored in the PBX or phone, this data can be used additionally for caller identification. Enable Display Caller ID Name identified by PBX. [75]

#### 9.2.8.6 Incoming Call - wrong address information is displayed

If you often get into the situation that multiple addresses are displayed in combination with the text *Caller could not be identified exactly*, this is due to the feature of truncating phone numbers. Reduce the number of digits which are truncated - see settings *Caller Identification truncate number of digits* 73

- In Europe use either 3 or 2
- In USA / Canada always use 0

#### 9.2.8.7 Incoming Call - problem with Internal Number

Check the following configuration settings:

- <u>Minimum length of phone number indication an external call</u> [69] this is the main configuration setting to determine if a call is internal or external
- Activate the Desktop Notification window for incoming calls to get each call signaled
- The configuration option: <u>Don't show internal calls</u> 73 must be unchecked
- If the internal number is e.g. signaled with 12 but the number stored in the database is 07342/7383-12, see in <u>Prefix for Internal Numbers</u> and area code

#### 9.2.9 Errors - Call Center Adapter

#### **Error Messages**

The following errors could occur. After changing a configuration setting always logout from salesforce.

• If the adapter is generally working but the SoftPhone suddenly does not respond on

calls, right mouse click on the blue icon and select *Restart Salesforce SoftPhone*. Then click on the Home TAB in Salesforce to refresh the page. If this happens frequently, then change the value *Timeout for http requests* in the expert settings of

Do you want to view only the web content that was delivered securely? (Warning mixed content)



The warning can be disabled using the following steps:

Go to Tools -> Internet Options -> Security -> Local Intranet



- Click "Custom Level"
- Select "Enable" for "Display mixed content"

Security Setting	s - Local Intranet Zone	<u> </u>
Settings		
becongs		_
0	Disable	A
۲	Enable	
Alle	ow webpages to use restricted protocols for active conten	
0	Disable	
0	Enable	
۲	Prompt	
	ow websites to open windows without address or status b	
	Disable	
۲	Enable	
Dis	splay mixed content	
0	Disable	
۲	Enable	
0	Prompt	
Do	n't prompt for client certificate selection when no certificat	
	Disable	
	Fnahla	-
•	4	
*Takes effe	ct after you restart Internet Explorer	
-Reset custom	n settings	
Reset to:	Medium-low (default)	
	Mediumhow (deradir)	
	OK Cano	el

- Click "OK"
- Click "OK"
- The call is signaled in the SoftPhone with a large delay change the value for *Polling interval in salesforce adapter* in the <u>expert settings</u> [97]
- Red error box: 500 stream:1: XML file has no top-element. All well-formed XML files have a single top-level element.

If a call center adapter from another vendor was installed on this computer, **uninstall this application and reinstall** CTI Data Connector for Salesforce.

The other reason for this error is an installation issue with the Windows XML subsystem, MSXML6, which has not been installed or properly registered.

- Login as administrator
- Navigate your Windows Explorer to c:\windows\system32
- Double click on msxml6.dll. It'll give you a window saying it doesn't know what to do
  with it. Select "select program from list."
- In the ensuing window, press Browse. There, type "c:\windows\system32\regsvr32" and confirm the selection with OK
- Red error box: Error connecting to the salesforce.com AppExchange API the SoftPhone does not load



If you get this error, contact salesforce support to enable the API. The API is disabled by default in a **test account** 

If you are using Professional / Enterprise Edition or higher see: <u>API is not enabled for</u> this Organization or Partner

Red error box: An Adapter for your Call Center was not found or could not be started. Please contact your Salesforce.com administrator to rectify this issue

Error: An adapter for your Call Center was not found or could not be started. Please contact your Salesforce.com administrator to rectify this issue.

The error message indicates, that the Salesforce Adapter DLL could not be registered

- In case you installed a call center adapter from other vendors **uninstall** it and **delete the adapter within salesforce**
- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (blue icon 24), right mouse click, Quit)
- Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using Windows Administrator credentials
- If the error persists send us a log file 100
- Red error box: API is not enabled for this Organization or Partner

If you are using a test account see: Error connecting to the salesforce.com

AppExchange API - the SoftPhone does not load

If you are using Professional / Enterprise Edition or higher, check the **profile** (Setup, Administration Setup, Manage Users, **Profiles**) which is associated to the user. There is an option: **API Enabled**. This must be checked. Also verify if the option: **Call Center** is checked with the option *Visible* 

Red error box: Unable to start the salesforce.com Office Tookit

DLLs have not been registered properly. Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using **Windows Administrator** credentials

Note for Administrators: The file **SF\_MSApi4.dll** is not registered. It is in the folder c: \program files\CTI Data Connector for salesforce 4.0\call center adapter and can be manually registered using regsvr32

Red error box: Unable to start the softphone XML subsystem



This error means that the XML subsystem, MSXML6, has not been installed or properly registered. Search "Unable to start the Softphone XML subsystem." in Salesforce.com Help & Training for troubleshooting steps.

Download MSXML6 Parser .Restart Windows after installation

Note for Administrators: The file **msxml6.dll** is missing or not registered. It is in the folder c:\windows\system32 and can be manually registered using regsvr32

■ Microsoft Visual C++ Debug Library

Error Message

Microso	ft Visual C++ Debug Library 🛛 🛛 🔀
	Debug Assertion Failed!
•	Program: C:\PROGRA~2\CTI\CALLCE~1\SALESF~1.EXE File: c:\programme\microsoft visual studio 9.0\vc\include\xstring Line: 112
	Expression: string iterator not dereferencable
	For information on how your program can cause an assertion failure, see the Visual C++ documentation on asserts.
	(Press Retry to debug the application)
	Abort Retry Ignore

The error message indicates, that different versions of the Salesforce Adapter DLL are installed

- In case you installed a call center adapter from other vendors **uninstall** it and **delete the adapter within salesforce**
- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (<u>blue icon</u> 24], right mouse click, Quit)
- Install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using Windows Administrator credentials
- If the error persists send us a log file 100
- The SoftPhone does not load in Firefox or Safari

See Browser Support 85

■ Phone icon is grey

Right to the phone number there is a **grey** icon instead of a green icon or the text: *click to dial disabled* is displayed when you click on a phone number

Check if the red salesforce icon is visible See also System Tray icon.

The icon is NOT visible

If the icon is not visible quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce and start it again. If the icon is still not visible

- Check if an error in a red box appears 154
- If there is no error message, install CTI Data Connector for Salesforce again using **Windows Administrator** credentials

- If the error persists send us a log file 100
- The icon is visible
  - Check if you get an <u>API error</u> [157]
  - If the error persists send us a log file 160

#### **Questions and Answers**

Salesforce offers a web page with comprehensive information and <u>questions and</u> <u>answers</u>

#### Send Log File

In case an error cannot be solved, send us a log file

- Right click on the red salesforce icon 2. Then select **Logging**.... See also System Tray icon.
- Check High Errors, informational messages, and XML

og Level		111000	
High - Errors, in	formational me	sages, and XML	
Medium - Errors	and information	nal messages	
Low - Errors onl	ly		
rowser Connector	-		
C:\PROGRA~2\CT	IDAT~1.0\CALI	_CE~1\browser_connec	
TI Connector Log	File		
-			
C: PROGRA~2\CT	IDAT~1.0\CAL	_CE~1\cti_connector.lo	g

- Quit CTI Data Connector for Salesforce (<u>blue icon</u> <sup>24</sup>), right mouse click, Quit) and **start it again**
- Send both log files (browser\_connector.log and cti\_connector.log) to Support@miragesystems.de. You find the files in the folder 4.0\call center adapter.

198

The integration in salesforce requires one of the following salesforce editions: *Professional, Enterprise, Unlimited* oder *Developer Edition.* 

#### 9.2.10 How do I send a log file?

If a problem can not be located, CTI Data Connector for Salesforce can log all events coming from the TAPI driver. Often wrong implementations of the TAPI driver or functions not implemented like call transferring are causing problems. Our support team can analyze the log file.

To send us a log file, perform the following steps:

- Start the Configuration Wizard (CTI Data Connector for Salesforce icon, right mouse click, Configuration Wizard)
- Browse to step 1 (depending on the program version this can be another page) and select the Button Expert Settings 58
- Check Activate call logging
- Press button OK, then button Finish
- CTI Data Connector for Salesforce starts. Now perform the operation **that is not working correctly**, e.g. make an incoming call with your mobile phone
- Everything is now logged into a file
- Start the Configuration Wizard (CTI Data Connector for Salesforce icon, right mouse click, Configuration Wizard)
- Browse to step 1 (depending on the program version this can be another page) and select the Button Expert Settings 58
- Press the button **Send Log File**. Your e-mail client opens. Add a detailed description of the problem and the exact phone numbers which do not work. Send the e-mail.
- Uncheck Activate call logging
- Press button OK, then button Finish

#### 9.2.11 Special requirements for Access database in a network environment

If an Access Database is used in a network environment, it could never be backed up as long as CTI Data Connector for Salesforce is running.

Enable the configuration option: <u>Terminate database connection after each call</u> and each client PC and **disable this option on the server** which performs the <u>phone</u> number formatting [80].

#### 9.2.12 How to use the Called ID (my number) for caller identification?

By default, the phone number of the person who is calling (CallerID) is used for caller identification. If the number which was called (Called ID) should be used, select the option Use Called ID for caller identification 73.

200

#### 9.2.13 How can I suppress the notification of internal calls?

By default, internal calls are signalled. Check the configuration option: <u>Don't show internal</u> <u>calls</u> **7**3

#### 9.2.14 How can I dial with an Hotkey?

In nearly any application a phone number can be **highlighted** and dialed using the Hotkey defined in the <u>configuration settings</u> [56]. **The default value is the key F10**.

Highlight the phone number within the Web Browser by pressing down the left mouse key and dragging the mouse cursor to the right. When reaching the end of the phone number, release the left mouse button and press F10.

In the example below a phone number has been highlighted. It can be dialed using the defined Hotkey.



United Whiskey Destilleries Ltd. Freemont Tower 3 Perkins Bridge Windsor SL44QQ United Kingdom

Phone: ++44734273833

#### See also

Troubleshooting - Hotkey is not working [189] Configuration - Hotkey to dial with a highlighted phone number [56] Configuration - Activate dialing via Hotkey [53]

#### 9.2.15 How can I dial with an Hyperlink?

You can dial with a Hyperlink in Browser applications. To use this functionality, the application has to be modified. Dialing via Hyperlink allows to dialing just with a click.

To dial via a hyperlink in a Browser based application, just insert the following command in your application:

<a href="callto://phonenumber">phonenumber</a>

where phonenumber has to be replaced by the real phone number like

<a href="callto://+4970054885342">+4970054885342</a>

It is displayed on the screen as follows: +4970054885342

To enable dialing via hyperlink open the Configuration Wizard and check <u>Activate dialing</u> <u>via Hyperlink</u> 53.

9

This function is available in all Browsers (e.g. Internet Explorer or Firefox).

#### See also

Enable Dial with a Hyperlink Troubleshooting - Dial with a Hyperlink is not working Configuration - Application used for dialing with Hyperlink 56

#### 9.2.16 How can I speed up dialling?

Often dialling of a phone number can be accelerated by using an additional character - especially when using an IP phone or software.

The configuration of the additional character (e.g. #) can be done in the Configuration Wizard, Expert Settings, <u>Provider Postfix</u> [61].

#### 9.2.17 How can I check my version number?

Right mouse click on the icon and select Open CTI Data Connector for Salesforce. Select menu **?**, **About CTI Data Connector for Salesforce**. You will find the detailed version number there.

To check for the latest updates, select menu ?, Software Service.

#### 9.2.18 How do I uninstall CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

To uninstall CTI Data Connector for Salesforce

- Select Start, Control Panel
- Add/Remove Programs

Search for CTI Data Connector for Salesforce 4.0 and select Remove.

#### 9.2.19 I found no answer for my questions

If you did not find an answer for your questions in the tutorial search in the extensive Online Knowledge Base.

**Browse Online Knowledge Base** 

203

# Index

### - # -

# 189

Access Database 66 Activation by E-Mail 140 Online 138 Activation Key Apply 78, 166 Announced Transfer 43 Application Reinstallation 143 Start 19

# - B -

Blind Transfer 44 Browser Configuration Wizard 57 Dial 35 Browser Support 85, 87, 107, 147, 148, 179 Buy Product 137 Buy Serial Number 137

# - C -

Call Transfer 43 **Caller Identification Configuration Wizard** 73 Callto 66 Skype Check for Updates 11 Clipboard Dial 38 **Configuration Setting** Minimum 22, 101, 184 Configuration Wizard

Access Database 66

Caller Identification 73 Callto 66 **Configure Browser** 57 **Configure Hotkey** 56 **Development API** 64 **Dialing Rules** 70 Dialing Rules for US / Canada 71 Expert Settings 58 Help and Welcome Screen 63 Introduction 51 **PBX and Caller Identification** 68 **PBX** Configuration 69 Select Language 52 Skype 66 **TAPI** Configuration 60 TAPI Driver 54 TAPI driver, Hotkey, Expert Settings, Browser Options 53 **Configure Hotkey** Configuration Wizard 56 Control Centre 25

### - D -

Deativate Network License 167 deinstall 202 Demoversion 164 **Development API** Configuration Wizard 64 Dial Browser 35 Clipboard 38 Hotkey 34, 200 Hyperlink 201 Salesforce 32 **Telephone Set** 38 **Dialing Rules** Configuration Wizard 70 Dialing Rules for US / Canada **Configuration Wizard** 71

# - E -

E-Mail Activation 140 Error Salesforce 153, 192

Error Protocol 81 Expert Settings Configuration Wizard 58

### - F -

Firefox 85, 87, 107, 147, 148, 179 First Steps 24 Format Phone Number 79 Server 80

### - H -

Help and Welcome Screen Configuration Wizard 63 Hotkey Dial 34, 200 Hyperlink Dial 201

## - | -

Icon 19, 23 Incoming Call 39 Settings 40, 190 Installation MAC OS X 161 Internet Explorer 85, 87, 107, 147, 148, 179

# - K -

Knowledge Base 20, 202

### - L -

Language Configuration Wizard 52 Left mouse click 23 License Deactivate 167 Transfer 144, 169 License Information 77, 165 Log File 60, 199

### - M -

MAC OS X 161 Menu 25 Edit Extras 25 File 25 Help 25 View 25 Messages Caller could not be identified exactly 192 Minimum Configuration Setting 22, 101, 184 Missed Calls 42

### - N -

Navigation 25

### - 0 -

Online Activation 138 Outgoing call Salesforce 32 Outgoing Calls 30 Settings 31, 186

### - P -

**PBX** Configuration Configuration Wizard 69 Phone Number Format 31 Formatting 79 Phone Simulator 27, 81 Postfix 189 Print Tutorial 8, 176 Program Version 25

### - Q -

Quick introduction screen 20

### - R -

Reinstall Software 143

204

Release Number 11, 25 Reports Salesforce 48 Right mouse click 23

### - S -

Salesforce Dial 32 Error 153, 192 Reports 48 Serial Number 137 Server Format Phone Number 80 Setup 80 Service Cloud 45 Settings Incoming Call 40, 190 31, 186 **Outgoing Call** Show License Information 77, 165 Simulator 27, 81 Skype callto 66 Software Update 11 Start Application 19 Support 202 System Requirements Operating System 147 TAPI Driver 87, 107, 148, 179 System Tray Left mouse click 23 Right mouse click 23

### - T -

**TAPI** Configuration **Configuration Wizard** 60 TAPI Driver 87, 107, 148, 179 Configuration Wizard 54 **Telephone Set** Dial 38 **Terminal Server** 128 Transer Call 43 Announced Transfer 43 **Blind Transfer** 44 Transfer License 144, 169

### - U -

uninstall 202 Unlock Key 140 Update 11, 20 Update Subscription 77, 165

# - V -

Version Information 20

- W -

Welcome Screen 20

#### 205